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No.: 5 /2025/CV-BTSC Ho Chi Minh City, March 21, 2025

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
To: Hanoi Stock Exchange

I. Introduction to the information disclosure organization
- Organization name: BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY.

- Stock code: BSC.
- Head office address: 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh
City.
- Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933.
- bux. (U28) 3914 0934.
- Information disclosure person: Mr. Nguyen Le Dung — Legal representative.
II. Information disclosure content

Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company announces information on the Minutes and
Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders. (Attached Minutes,

Resolution).
This information is disclosed on the Company's website at the link www.btsc.com.vn.

We commit that the information disclosed above is true and we are fully responsible
before the law for the information disclosed.

Best regards.

Recipient: INFORMATION DISCLOSURE PERSON
- As above;
- Post Company Website;
- Archived.
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PERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY  SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SRR AR Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, March 21, 20235

MINUTES OF
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Company’s name:

BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY (BTSO)

Head office: 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Minh City.

Business registration certificate No.: 0305246978 issued by the Department of
Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City on October 4, 2007.

Meeting time: 08:00 on Friday, March 21, 2025.

Location: Conference Room - Hoa Vien Tri Ky Restaurant - No. 123 Hong Ha,
Ward 9, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City.

L. PROCEDURE OF TIIE GENERAL MEETING

1. Report on the results of checking the qualifications of shareholders attending

the General Meeting:

L
0.0

The Organizing Committee would like to request for the general meeing's
oplnlon on the List of the Shareholder (ualitication Examination Committee.
inchnding the following people
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Nga - Head of Committee
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Huynh Trang Member
The general meeting voted unanimously to pass with 100% of votes in favor.
Lhe shareholder qualitication examination Committee reports the results of the
shareholder qualification examination to attend the meeting:
The total number of sharcholders entitled to attend the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders is 72 shareholders, equivalent to 3,150,747 shares.
The nwuber of shareholders and persons authorized by shareholders to attend
the meeting is 11 people, equivalent to 3.104.893 shares, accounting for
98,54% of the total number of shares with voting rights.
Pursuant to the provisions of the Enterprise Law 2020 and the Company

Charter, the General Meeting is eligible to proceed.




1.

+
O‘O

+

)

*
’Q

3

Presidium, Secretary, Vote Counting Committee, Vote Counting
Supervisory Committee:
Presidium

- Mr. Le Van Hung - President of the Board of Directors - President

- Mr. Nguyen Le Dung - General Director - Member

Secretary of the General Meeting: Ms. Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi (appointed by
the Presidium)
Counting Committee
- Ms. Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi - Head of Committee
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Nga - Member
The General Meeting voted to pass with 100% of the votes in favor.
Vote counting supervisory Committee:
- Mr. Tran Anh Phu - Head of Committee
- Mr. Vo Hoang Truc - Member
Lhe general meehing vofed 1o pass with 100% of the votes in favor.
Present and approve the Working and Voting Regulations at the General
Meeting, the working program of the General Meeting:
Mr. Tran Anh Phu, on behalf of the Organizing Committee, presented the Draft

Regulations on Working and Voting at the general meeting and the Agenda of the

General Meeting.

I1.
1.

The General Meeting voted to pass with 100% of the votes in favor.

CONFERENCE CONTENT

Report of the Board of Directors, Executive Board and Supervision Board

- Mr. Le Van Hung - President of the Board of Directors presented the Board of
Directors' 2024 performance report and the 2025 performance plan.

- Mr. Nguyen Le Dung - General Director presented the Board of Directors'
2024 business performance report and the 2025 performance plan.

- Ms. Dang Kim Dung - Head of the Supervision Board presented the
Supervision Board's report on the 2024 performance results and the 2025
performance plan.

Ms. Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi - Chief Accountant presented the Company's 2024

audited financial statements.

2. Contents presented at the General Meeting of Shareholders

&
'.0

Mr. Nguyen Le Dung - General Director presented to the General Meeting
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*  Report on approval of the 2024 business performance report and the 2025
business plan;
*  Report on approval of the audited 2024 Company Financial Statement;
®  Report on the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Supervision
Board in 2024 and the estimated remuncration of the Board of Directors
and the Supervision Board in 2025;
*  Report on the distribution of profits in 2024;
*  Report on the 2025 dividend payment plan;
*  Report on the addition of business lines of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock
Company;
% Ms. Dang Kim Dung — Head of the Board of Supervisors presented to the
general meeting:
" Report on selecting an Auditing Company for the 2025 Financial
Statements
3. Discussion section of the General Meeting:
Shareholders attending the meeting discuss and give opinions: No comments
4. Yoting scction of the General Meeting
Content 1: Approval of the Board of Directors' 2024 performance report and
2025 performance direction.

Voting part:
- Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.
- Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of sharcholders
auending the meeting,.
- No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeting.
Content 2: Approval of the 2024 Business Results Report and the 2025
performance direction.
Voting part:
- Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.
- Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.



- No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

Content 3: Approval of the Board of Supervision Report on the 2024

performance results and the 2025 performance direction

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.

Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeting.

No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

Content 4: Approval of the Company's audited 2024 Financial Statements.

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.

Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeting.

No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

Content 5: Approval of the Report on business performance in 2024 and business
plan in 2025.
Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.

Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeting.

No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of sharcholders

attending the meeting.

Content 6: Approval of the Report on the operating remuneration of the Board

of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the estimated operating

remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2025.

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of

shareholders attending the meeting.
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Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.
No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

Content 7: Approval of the Proposal on selecting an Auditing Company for the

2025 Financial Statements.

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.
Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.
No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

Content 8: Report on profit distribution in 2024

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of
shareholders attending the meeting.

Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

Content 9: Report on dividend payment in 2025.

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of

shareholders attending the meeting.
Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting,.

Content 10: Proposal on supplementing business lines of Ben Thanh Service

Joint Stock Company.

Voting part:

Approve: 3.104.893 Shares account for 100% of the voting shares of

shareholders attending the meeting.
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- Disapprove: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeting.
- No opinion: 0 Shares account for 0% of the voting shares of shareholders

attending the meeting.

III. SUMMARY OF THE GENERAL MEETING

1. The General Meeting approved the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company with
100% of the votes in favor.

2. The General Meeting approved the Resolution of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company with
100% of the votes in favor.

3. The Presidium declared the closing of the meeting.

The 2025 Annual General Moeting of Sharcholders of Den Thanh Scivice Juinil
Stock Company ended at 09:30 on March 21, 2025.

This Minutes have been read in full to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and approved as a true and accurate record by 100% of the total
votes of the shareholders attending the meeting.

This Minutes consists of 6 (six) pages, made into 03 (three) originals of equal

value and is confirmed and signed below by the representatives of the

Presidium and the Secretary

TH SECRETARY ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL

OF THE GENERAL MEETING MEETING PRESIDING DELEGATION
THE PRESIDENT
I
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HOANG THI QUYNH NHI L.E VAN HUNG



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY  SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
TR T RRS LS Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 01/2025/NQ-DHDCD

Ho Chi Minh City, March 21, 2025

RESOLUTION
THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Pursuant to:

- The Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

- The Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019;

- The Current Charter of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company;

- The Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company on March 21, 2025.

HEREBY RESOLVES

On March 21, 2025, at the Conference Room - Hoa Vien Tri Ky Restanrant - No,
123 Hong Ha, Ward 9, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City, the General Meeting of
Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company holds the annual meeting
with the participation of 11 shareholders owning 3.104.893 sharcs accounting for
98,54% of the total number of voting shares of the Company.

After listening (o the contents of the Reports and Proposals, the General Meeting
discussed and unanimously voted to pass the Resolution with the following contents:

Article 1. This is to approve the Board of Directors' 2024 Operational Report
and the 2025 Operational Directions

Approval rafe: 100% of voting shares of sharcholders attending the meeting.

Article 2. This is to approve the 2024 Business Results Report and the 2025
Operational Directions of the Board of Directors with the following basic contents:

1. Business performance results in 2024:
- Total revenue: VND 13,226,000,000
- Pre-tax Profit: VND 2.772.000.000
2. Business Plan 2025:
- Total revenue: VND 19.235.000.000
- Pre-tax Profit: VND 3.050.000.000
Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting.

Article 3. This is to approve the Board of Supervisors' Report on 2024
performance results and 2025 performance plan.

Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting.

Article 4. This is to approve the Company's audited financial statements for

2024.




Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders aftending the meeting.
Article 5. This is to approve the Report on business performance in 2024 and

business plan in 2025.

Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting.
Article 6. This is to approve the Report on the operating remuneration of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the estimated operating
remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2025.
Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders aftending the meeting.
Article 7. This is to approve the list of 03 auditing units to be included in the list
of selected units to provide auditing services for the Company's Financial Statements

in 2025 as proposed by the Board of Supervisors, including:
(1) A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited (A&C);

(2) Southern Accounting and Auditing Financial Consulting Services Company

(AASCS);
(3) RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited;

Authorize the Board of Directors to decide on selecting one of the three above-
mentioned auditing units to audit the 2025 Finaucial Slutements and assign the

General Director to sign a contract with the selected auditing unit.

Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting.
Article 8. This is to approve the Proposal on profit distribution in 2024 with

some specific contents as follows:

(Unit: Million VND)

No. Content Amount
1 | Pre-tax Profit 2024 2772
2 | Corporate income tax payable 610
3 | Deferred corporate income tax 1
4 | Profit after tax in 2024 [(1) - (2) - (3)] 2.161
5 | Undistributed protit atter tax until December 31, 2024 5.945
6 [ Profit distribution plan
6.1 | Provision of funds from Profit after tax in 2024 (12%) 259
- Bonus fund for Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Company 86
Executive Board, Secretary of Board of Directors (4%)
- Reward Fund (3%) 65
- Welfare fund (5%) 108
6.2 | Pay cash dividends at a rate of 10%/Charter capital 3:151
7 | Remaining undistributed profit after tax 2.535

Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting
Article 9. This is to approve the Proposal on the 2025 dividend payment plan.
Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting
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Article 10. This is to approve the Proposal on supplementing business lines of Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company.

Agree to authorize the Company's Legal Representative to carry out the
necessary procedures in accordance with the provisions of law to complete the
contents stated in this Article.

The Company's Legal Representative shall carry out the procedures related to the
addition of business lines at the competent State agency, including adjusting the
detailed contents within the scope of business lines approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Update the approved business lines according to the registration results approved
by the competent State management agency in the Company Charter in Clause 1,
Article 4. Implement information disclosure in accordance with regulations.

Approval rate: 100% of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting

Article 11. Implementation provisions:

1. This Resolution is approved in full by the General Meeting of Sharcholders of
Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and takes effect from the date of signing.

2. The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, the General Director Board and
all shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company are responsible for
implementing this Resolution.

3. The contents of this Resolution may be extracted to carry out administrative
procedures at the request of competent state agencies.

ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL

1

Recipient:
- As per Article 11; MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- Hanoi Stock Exchange; THE PRESIDENT. %/

- Ho Chi Minh City Business Registration
Office; ;
- Archived the records of the 2025 General 2/ c8pHAN ./\P\
Meeting of Shareholders. ol /1 /l/
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BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC
- Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
Email: benthanhl(@btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn

No.: 09/2025/BC-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 18. 2025

REPORT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTIVITIES IN 2024
AND ORIENTATION FOR ACTIVITIES IN 2025

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Ben Thanh Service Joint
Stock Company and relevant legal provisions, the Board of Directors of the Company
respectfully reports to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on the results of
management work in 2024 and the direction of operation in 2025.

PART I:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ACTIVITIES REPORT 2024

I. Results of implementing the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders
approving the content by collecting shareholders' opinions in writing,

In 2024, (he Bowrd of Dircctors las fully implemented the assigned tasks
according to Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated March 22, 2024 of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and some contents in Resolution No.
02/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated August 20, 2024 of the General Meeting of Shareholdets
through the contents in the form of collecting sharcholders' opinions in writing.
Specifically as follows:

1. Implement business targets set by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders

Over the past year, the Board of Directors has performed well the functions of
governance, supervision, and orientation of the Company's business activities, while
promptly resolving difficulties and obstacles, and proposing solutions to maintain and
develop the Company's business activities. In 2024, the Company completed the targets
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Detailed business results m 2024 are
as follows:




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC

Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933

Fax: (028) 3914 0934

["'f,,w "‘i_{:' Email: benthanhl(@btsc.com.vn  Website: www.btsc.com.vn
Unit: Million VND
Results | ocults 2024
Plan Results | Results 2024
No. Target vs. Plan
2024 | 2024 2023 i
2024
2023
1 Total revenue 12.768 13.226 10.524 125.7% 103,6%
2 | Total cost 10.265 10.454 7.128 146,7% 101,8%
3 | Pre-tax Profit 2.503 2.772 3.396, 81,6% 110,7%

2. Profit distribution in 2023

Meeting approved the content of profit distribution for 2023.

At the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on March 22, 2024, the

3. Dividend payment in 2023 and dividend payment plan in 2024

At the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on March 22, 2024, the
General Meeting did not approve the 2023 dividend payment and the 2024 dividend

payment plan.

4. Select an independent auditor to audit the Company's 2024 Financial

Statements

Signed a Contract with A&C Auditing & Consulting LLC to audit the Company's

2024 Financial Statements.

5. Thue hién chi tra thi lao HPQT va BKS nim 2024

According to Article 6 of the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated March 22, 2024, the remuneration of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 is VND 492,000,000. The
Board of Directors has paid remuneration to the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors according to the approved Resolution. The remuneration of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors paid is VND 483,935,000, VND 8,065,000 less
than the Resolution because in the third quarter of 2024, 01 member of the Board of
Supervisors submitted a resignation letter and in the third quarter of 2024, 01 additional
member of the Board of Supervisors was elected. The remuneration of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors is paid specifically as follows:



BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1. HCMC
Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933 Fax: (028) 3914 0934

BTSC , :
E?"ﬁg Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn
No. Full name Position Remuneration
(VND)
- (Mr.) Le Van Hung Chairman of the Board 84.000.000
2 (Mr.) Nguyen Le Dung Board Member 60.000.000
3 (Mrs.) Le Thi Tuong Vy Board Member 60.000.000
4 (Mrs.) Nguyen Kim Hau Board Member 60.000.000
5 (Mrs.) Truong Thi Thanh Board Member 60.000.000
Luan
6 (Mr.) Le Ngoc Nguyen Hoang | Head of the Supervisory Board 30.000.000
! (Mrs.) Dang Kim Dung Head of the Supervisory Board 21.935.000
3 (Mr.) Tu Vi Tri Supervisor 36.000.000
9 (Mr.) Huynh Van Toan Supervisor 36.000.000
10 (Mrs.) Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi | Secretary of the Board of Directlors 36.000.000
TIYI'AL, 48.3.935.000

6. Continue to implement the capital contribution plan to the Vinh Loc
Conference Center and Restaurant Project.

Pursuant to Article 10 of the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCP dated March 22, 2024. On March 26, 2024, the
Company registered 0 purcliase 737,561 shares at Viuh Loc - Ben Thanh Company. On
the same day, the Company completed the payment for the purchase of 737,561 shares
with the amount of: VND 7,375,610,000. The total capital contribution at Vinh Loc - Ben
Thanh Company to dato ig; VIND 20,975.610,000,

II. Other activities of the Board of Directors in 2024

1. Board of Directors meetings in 2024

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 03 in-person meetings and 12 written opinions.
The in-person meetings and written opinions of the Board of Directors in 2024 were
organized and conducted in accordance with the Company's Charter and legal
regulations. The Minutes, Resolutions, and Decisions of the Board of Directors were all
agreed upon by the members attending the meeting.
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BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

: 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1. HCMC

— . Phone: (028) 3914 0932 —3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BEBTSC Email: benthanhl @btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn
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Numb ‘
umf & Meeting |

No. Board Member {::_ attendance | Reason for not attending

meetings
t

attended rate

1 Mr. Le Van Hung 3/3 100%

2 Mr. Nguyen Le Dung 3/3 100%

3 Ms. Truong Thi Thanh 3/3 100%

Luan
4 Ms. Le Thi Tuong Vy 3/3 100%
5 Ms. Nguven Kim Hau 3/3 100%

2. Some decisions of the Board of Directors in 2024:

The contents of the Board of Directors' meetings were approved with the approval
voting results reaching the approval rate according to the provisions of the Law and the
Company's Charter and issued Resolutions and Decisions with the following contents:

Resolution/
.. Day Content Passage
Decision Number

_ Rate

- On approving the time to organize the

2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and the last registration
date to exercise the right to atiend the
2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. - On approving the time to
organize the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders and the last
registration date to exercise the right to
attend the 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders.

100%

January 25,

1/2024
01/2024/NQ TIDQT =

1. Approval of the 2023 Business
Performance  Report and 2024
February 26, | Operational Plan.

2024 - Approval of the 2023 Business
Performance Summary Report.

02/2024/NQ-HDQT

- Agree on the 2024 Operational Plan

4




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC

| Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933 Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSC Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn
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and Targets.

2. Approval of the following items to be
included in the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders agenda:

- Approval of the time to hold the 2024
Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

- Approval of the venue to hold the 2024
Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

- Contents to be submitted to the 2024
Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders:

» Report on the activities of the Board ot
Directors in 2023 and the direction of
activities in 2024

* Report on the business performance in
2023 and the direction of activities in
2024

= Report on the activities of the Board of
Supervisors in 2023.

» Financial statements of the Company in
2023 (Audited).

» Report on the business performance in
2023 and the business plan in 2024.

*» Report on the approval of the audited
financial statements of the Company in
2023.

» Report on the remuneration of the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board in 2023 and approval of the
remuneration estimate for the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board in
2024.

« Report on selecting an independent
auditing company to audit the 2023

100%

3



BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

: 390 Nguyen Cong Tru. Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1. HCMC

i ' 2 Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSC Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn
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financial statements.

» Report on amending and supplementing
the Company Charter.

« Report on adjusting part of the content
in Resolution 02/2023/NQ-DHDCD of
the Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders on September 8, 2023 to
continue  contributing capital and
purchasing shares at Vinh Loc - Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company.

« Other contents (if any).

3. Approval of the establishment of a
shareholder qualification inspection team
to serve the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders as proposed by
the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Approval of the Contract and

Transaction between Ben Thanh Service

April 22, Joint Stock Company and Long An
2024 Investment Company Limited.

100%
03/2024/ NQ-HDQT

Approval  content:  Purchase and
installation of goods

1. Approval of Submission No.
40/2024/TTr-BTSC dated June 11, 2024
on selecting an auditing unit to perform
the 2024 Financial Statements. Agree to
select Auditing and Consulting Company
Limited (A&C) to audit the 2024 | 100%
financial statements of Ben Thanh

04/2024/ NQ-HDQT | June 12, 2024 Service Joint Stock Company.

2. Approval of the Contract and
Transaction between Ben Thanh Service
Joint Stock Company and Phu Nhuan
Trading Joint Stock Company.

Approval content: Construction and
repair.

6




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

: 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC

. . .b-' Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSC Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn
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-Approval of Contract, Transaction
between Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock
Company and Phu Nhuan Trading Joint

05/2024/NQ-HDQT | July 8, 2024 | Stock Company.

Content of approval: Approval of
contract, transaction related to the
provision of air conditioning services.

Approving the content, form, and time of
organizing the collection of shareholders’
opinions in writing. In which:

Content: Election of additional members

of the Board of Supervisors
06/2024/NQ-HDQT | July 12, 2024 100%

Last registration date: August 2, 2024
[xpected time: August 8, 2024  August
20, 2024

Form: Collection of shareholders'
opinions in writing.

Nominate the following Mr. and Ms. as
candidates to join the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board of Vinh Loc-Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company for
the term 2024-2029:

Mominate Mr. Mguyen Le Dung as
candidate 1o join the Board ol Directlors
of Vinh Loc-Ben Thanh Service Joint
Stock Company for the term 2024-2029.
- Nominate Ms. Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi
as candidate to join the Board of
Supervisory Board of Vinh Loc-Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company for
the term 2024-2029.

07/2024/NQ-HDQT | July 12, 2024 100%

B <0 ol

Through obtaining written opinions from

hareholders on supplementing and
08/2024/NQ-HDQT | August7, | SIArchoiCers on Supp Cmentig 100%

2024 amending details of the Company's

business lines.

(&



BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru. Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC
e R Phone: (028) 3914 0932 —3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSOC Email: benthanhl(@btsc.com.vin Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Beost o Seeen 8 Carn

Approval of the General Director's report
on business performance for the first 6

August 21,
@ | EUERERDG | ol | entiisn 308 busfvess Breofion S
for the last 6 months of 2024,
Approving the contents of Submission
No. 102/2024/TTr-BTSC dated October
10 | 10/2024/NQ-HDQT O“gg;; 23. | 18, 2024 of Ben Thanh Service Joint 100%
Stock Company on leasing market stall
space at Binh Dien market.

Approving the main contents of the
transaction and approving the signing of
the Service Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company and Phu
Nhuan Trading Joint Stock Company.

Approval content: Approving the Service
11 | 11/2024/NQ-HDQT Dec;g;ller % | Contract related to the supply. 100%
installation,  maintenance of air
conditioners and related equipment,
repair and construction, basic
construction, camera installation and
other items within the scope of the

Company's business lines.

Approving the main contents of the
transaction and approving the signing of
the Service Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company and
Vinaprint Joint Stock Company.

12| 12/2024/NQ-HDQT December 3, | Approval content: Approving thﬁ: Service
2024 Contract related to repair and
construction, basic construction,
refrigeration and solar energy systems,
camera installation and other items
within the scope of the Company's
business lines.

100%

13 | 13/2024/NQ-HDQT December | Approving the main contents of the 100%

18,2024 | transaction and approving the signing of

8
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the Service Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company and
Transimex Hi Tech Park Logistics
Company Limited. Approval content:
Approving the Transaction Contract
related to the supply and installation of
rooftop solar power systems; supply,
installation,  maintenance  of  air
conditioners and related equipment;
repair and construction; installation of
cameras and other items within the scope
of the Company's business lines.

14

14/2024/NQ-HDQT

December
18, 2024

Approving the main contents of the
transaction and approving the signing of
the Service Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company and
Transimex Port Joint Stock Company.

Approval content: Approving the
Transaction Contract related to the
supply and installation of rooftop solar
power systems; supply, installation,
maintenance of air conditioners und
related  equipment;  repair  and
construction; installation of cameras, and
other items within the scope of the
Company's business lines.

100%

—

\\‘?}-\ % 1 ﬁ\

15

15/2024/NQ-HDQT

December
18, 2024

Approval for Ben Thanh Service Joint
Stock Company to sign and execute
transaction contracts with the following
companies:

+ Transimex Hi Tech Park Logistics
LLC.

Approval  content:  Approval  of
transaction contracts related to the
supply and installation of rooftop solar
power systems and other related

100%

L4
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professional support services.
+ GP Solar Technology LLC.
Approval  content:  Approval of
transaction contracts related to the
supply and installation of rooftop solar
power systems and other related
professional support services.

16

Approval of the business results report
for the first 9 months of the year and
Estimated performance in 2024 -

. e | T3 Business arientation in 2025 Assign the
HnieseEle 27"1;“(’]!;31‘ General Director to continue L
implementing the Company's business
activities and report the results to the

Board of Directors.

3. Activities of indepondent members of the Board of Dircetors and the results of

the independent members' assessment of the activities of the Board of Directors

3.1 QOwver the past year, the Roard nf Directars has perfarmed well its fimetions of

governance, supervision, and direction of the Company's business activities. The Board

of Directors' activities in 2024 were carried out in compliance with the Company's

Charter and current legal regulations, fully implementing the contents of the Resolution

ol the General Meeling ol Shareholders and e contents authorized by the General

Meeting of Sharcholders.

3.2 Independent members of the Board of Directors fully attended, contributed their

opmions to the Board of Directors meetings and unanimously approved the contents at

the meetings and at the written consultations. The meetings and the written consultations

with the Board of Directors took place on time, and the issues discussed and approved

were within the authority and functions of the Board of Directors.

4. Report on transactions:

4.1 Transactions between the company and related persons of the company; or between
the company and major shareholders, insiders, related persons of insiders: Yes

4.2 Transactions between the company and companies that members of the Board of
Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors, and the General Director have

10
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operated 1in the past three (03) years (calculated at the time of preparing the report):

Yes.
III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY'S
PERFORMANCE
1. Board of Directors' assessment of the Company's operations
1.1 Regarding the implementation of the 2024 plan targets: The Company has completed
the targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
1.2 In 2024, all business areas of the Company have maintained stable operations in
accordance with the development orientation; In addition, new business areas such as
supplying and installing solar power systems; operating, maintaining and cleaning solar
panels, air conditioner cleaning, renovation and repair. construction, installation of
surveillance camera systems, etc. have achieved good results.
2. Board of Directors' assessment of the performance of the Board of Directors
2.1 The results of the Board of Directors' supervision show that in 2024, the Board of
Directors and the working apparatus have fully implemented the Resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, and have operated the
Company in decordance with he lunctions and lasks stipulated in the Company's Charler
and the provisions of law. At the same time, with determination and efforts, the Board of
Direclors has maintained the Company's operations well and limited the difficull impacts
of the market economy in the past year.
2.2 Information disclosure activities have been carried out seriously, in accordance with
legal regulations, in compliance with the principles of publicity and transparency. and

there have been no complaints or lawsuits from shareholders.

PART II:
2025 RATIONAL DIRECTION

The Board of Directors of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company determined the
operating direction in 2025 as follows:
1. Strive to complete the business plan targets for 2025, specifically:

1.1. Total revenue : VND 19.235.000.000

1.2. Pre-tax Profit : VND 3.050.000.000
2. Focus on directing and managing the activities of the Board of Directors and the

Company's management staff, stabilizing business operations and developing new
business areas in line with the Company's development orientation.
11
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3. Strengthening financial management, strictly controlling the balance of capital sources,
ensuring a stable financial situation.
4. The Company's Executive Board continues to inspect, supervise and monitor the
implementation of the Vinh Loc Convention Center and Restaurant Project on schedule.
5. Directing the full disclosure of corporate information and compliance with current
legal regulations.
6. Focusing on training, improving the professional quality and work efficiency of
officers and employees.
7. Building corporate culture and professional working style.

Above is the Report of the Company's Board of Directors on the direction and
supervision of the Company's activities in 2024 and the direction of activities in 2025.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients: _prmmmme  Chairman 4/
- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 3 X
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board; '

- Save.
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Ho Chi Minh City, February 18, 2025

REPORT

BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024
AND OPERATIONAL DIRECTION IN 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

Based on the 2024 business results and the actual operating situation of the
Company, the Board of Directors reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders the
2024 business results and specific tasks and directions for 2025 as follows:

I. OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN 2024
1. Implementation status of targets according to the 2024 business plan:
Unit: million VND

Results 2024
Resulis Results | 2024 vs 2023
No. Target Plan 2024 vs. Plan
2023 2024 Results
2024
1 | Total revenue 10.524 12.768 13.226) 125,7% 103,6%
R 1.957 959 1.152 58,99  120,1%
Interest
2 | Total cost 7.128 10.265 10.454 146,7% 101,8%
In which: Fi '
i 920 650 1.370 148.99  210.8%
reserve cosis
3 | Pre-tax Profit 3.396 2.503 2.772 81,6% 110,7%

In 2024, revenue reached VND 13,226 million, up 3.6% compared to the plan and
up 25.7% over the same period, due to increased revenue from technical services. Profit
before tax reached VND 2,772 million, up 10.7% compared to the plan and down 18.4%
over the same period, due to decreased revenue from financial activities (decreased
interest rates and deposits) and increased financial expenses (increased provisions for the
Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh project.

2. The Company's business activities in 2024:

2.1. Business activities at premises and market stalls:
1
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The business situation at the premises and market stalls is relatively stable, the
current rental price is suitable for the market price. Revenue in 2024 from the
exploitation of premises, market stalls and business cooperation services 1s 8,652 million
VND, accounting for 65.4% of total revenue and increasing by 6.4% over the same

period due to the adjustment of prices of some premises and market stalls.

2.2, Technical services:
a) Solar panel installation, operation and maintenance services

The Company provides installation, operation and maintenance services for solar
power systems. In 2024, the Company will continue to provide solar power system
maintenance services for Transimex Hi Tech Park Logistics Company Limited (SHTP),
Transimex Port Joint Stock Company (ICD) and survey and quote solar panel
installation prices for a number of units: Merufa Company; Specialty Seafood Joint
Stock Company (Ben Tre Branch); SHTP Company; ICD Company; Ben Thanh Non
Nuoc Company (Sandy Beach Resort Da Nang).

b) Refrigeration system installation and maintenance service

In 2024, the Company will continue to deploy refrigeration system installation
and maintenance for Hoa Vien Tri Ky Restaurant (Phu Nhuan Trading Joint Stock
Company) and 160 Hai Ba Trung building (Ben Thanh General Cultural Joint Stock

Company) and is looking for more customers.
c) Consulting, renovation and repair services in the construction sector

In 2024, the Company will continue to deploy consulting, renovation and repair
services in the construction sector and achieve positive results. The Company has
conducted surveys, consulted and constructed foundation repairs, drainage systems,
waterproofing of walls and roofs, wall paint, etc. for a number of factory and office
buildings at companies such as: SHTP Company (TMS); ICD Company (IMS): Vina
Building (Vinaprint Joint Stock Company); 82 Tran Huy Lieu Building, Tri Ky Flower
Garden Restaurant, Phu Nhuan Trading Joint Stock Company (PNCo) Office. At the
same time, the Company is also conducting surveys and looking for more customers

who need consulting, renovation and repair in this field.
d) Installation and maintenance service of CCTV systems

In order to expand its business activities, in 2024, the Company has deployed the
2
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installation and maintenance service of CCTV systems. The Company has renovated and
installed HT Camera for the cold storage of Long An Investment Company Limited;
Pickleball warehouses and fields - Vinaprint Joint Stock Company; TMS Building, ICD
Port, Da Nang Logistic Center, Binh Duong CFS warehouse... Currently, the Company
is continuing to survey and search for customers who need to use this service and has
surveyed and quoted the installation and renovation of CCTV systems for Vinafreight

Joint Stock Company, Long An Investment Company Limited's cold storage, Phase 3...

The estimated revenue in 2024 from exploiting technical services is 3.423 million

VND, accounting for 26% of total revenue.

3. Financial investment situation:
* Vinh Loc Conference Center Wedding Restaurant Project:

BTSC Company has contributed VND 20,975,610.000 equivalent to 27.24% of
charter capital to Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company to implement the
Vinh Loc Convention Center Wedding Restaurant project.

Regarding implementation progress: The project has completed the entire
reinforced concrete structure of the main building, the roof, underground water tanks and
the ME system. Currently, the interior construction and equipment installation are
underway. In addition, the logo and brand identity of VinhLoc Palace have been
designed (granted a certificate of protection by the Department of Intellectual Property).
Expected to be put into operation in the third quarter of 2025.

4. Company's financial situation as of December 31, 2024:
Unit: million VND

As of December 31, 2024 | As of January 1, 2024 | [pcrease or
Target
Value Proportion | Value | Proportion decrease

1. Current assets 25.845 59.6% | 29.920 71,6% (4.075)
2. Long-term assets 17.539 40,4% 11.872 28.4% 5.667
TOTAL ASSETS 43.384 100% 41.792 100% 1.592
1. Liabilities 2.754 6,3% 3.031 7,3% (277)
2. Equity 40.630 93,7% | 38.761 92,7% 1.869
TOTAL CAPITAL 43.384 100% | 41.792 100% 1592
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Short-term assets are VND 25,845 million, accounting for 59.6% of total asset
value. Of which, short-term financial investments (bank deposits) account for a

large proportion, other items account for an insignificant proportion.

Long-term assets are VND 17,539 million, accounting for 40.4% of total assets.
Long-term assets are mainly investment real estate and capital contributions to

joint ventures and associated companies.

End-of-period liabilities are VND 2,754 million, accounting for 6.3% of total
capital, mainly from deposits received from customers renting premises, market

stalls and taxes payable to the State.

Owner's equity is VND 40,630 million, accounting for 93.7% of total capital.

In general, the Company's financial situation as of December 31, 2024 is stable,

with no significant fluctuations compared to the beginning of 2024

5. Some financial indicators:
Indicators 2023 2024 Note
1. Liguidity rutio
- Current ratio 12,0 12.0
- Quick ratio 12.0 12.0
2. Capital structurc index (%0)
- Debt/Total assets ratio 7.25 6.35
- Debt/Equity ratio 7.82 6.78
3. Profitability (%)
- Profit after tax ratio/ Net revenue 34,58 19,38
- Profit after tax ratio/ Equity 6.88 532
- Profit after tax ratio/ Total assets 6,38 4,98
- Operating profit ratio/ Net revenue 44,07 24,86

6. Administration and management:

Complete the regulations and rules to serve the Company's operations;

Carry out the work of adding some new business lines such as: "General support
services", "Landscape care and maintenance services" to expand the Company's
business activities, improve the efficiency of the Enterprise's operations.

The Company's human resources situation in 2024 is stable. The Company is
4
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currently arranging and training to improve professional skills for staff to adapt to
the Company's business activities.

II. 2025 OPERATIONAL DIRECTIONS

1. 2025 plan targets:
Unit: million VND

Implemen Plan Compare 2025
Target tation 2025 plan with 2024 [Proportion
2024 implementation
Total revenue 13.226 19.235 +6.009 145,4%
Pre-tax Profit 2.772 3.050 + 278 110,0%

Revenue in 2025 is expected to increase by 45.4% compared to 2024 due to
increased revenue from solar panel installation and maintenance services, renovation and
repair in the construction sector; and installation of surveillance camera systems. Profit
in 2025 will increase by 10% compared to 2024 due to increased revenue from technical
services.

2. Orientation of operational goals for 2025:
- Complete (he 2025 business plan taigets approved by the General Mecting of
Shareholders.

- Focus on effectively exploiting the premises and markel stalls that the Company

is managing. Continue to promote service industries such as: Industrial cleaning
services; Supply and installation of solw puwer systeins, system operation and puncl
cleaning; Air conditioner maintenance services; Consulting, renovation, repair,
construction services; Installation and maintcnance of CCTV systems, etc.

- Seek opportunities to cooperate with capable and experienced partners in business
fields that are consistent with the Company's development orientation.

- Strengthen financial management, control expenses, balance capital sources,
ensure stable financial situation and restructure capital, and capitalize assets reasonably.
Research types of financial business to implement, contributing to improving capital
efficiency.

- Review, amend and supplement to complete the regulations and rules serving the
Company's operations;

- Train and improve professional skills for staff, especially those involved in

industrial cleaning services, repair and construction.

5
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- Participate in supporting the Board of Directors of Vinh Loc Ben Thanh Service
Joint Stock Company to promote the progress of the Vinh Loc Conference Center
Wedding Restaurant project to soon complete and put into operation.

Above is the 2024 Business Performance Report and 2025 Business Plan of the
Board of Directors. Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Best regards.

Recipients:

- Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2025;

- Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board;

- Save.
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No.: 02/BKS/2025 Ho Chi Minh City, February 17, 2025

REPORT

OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ON PERFORMANCE RESULTS IN 2024
AND PERFORMANCE PLAN IN 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders — Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Based on the functions and duties of the Board of Supervisors as stipulated in the
Charter of organization and operation of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company;

- Based on Financial Report 2024 of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company audited
by A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

The Board of Supervision reports to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on the
operating results in 2024 and the operating plan in 2025 as follows:

I. Activities of the Board of Supervision:

In 2024, the Board of Supervision consisted of 04 members with a total operating

remuneration in 2024 of VND 123,935,000, specifically as follows:

Remuncration
No. Full name Position
(VND)

Head of the Boad
1 | Mr. Le Ngoc Nguyen Hoang (Resigned on August 20, 2024) 30.000.000

ITead of the Doad
2 | Ms. Dang Kim Dung (Resigned on August 20, 2024) 21.935.000
3 | Mr. TuViTr Board of Supervision 36.000.000
4 | Mr. Huynh Van Toan Board of Supervision 36.000.000
TOTAL 123.935.000

During its operation, the Board of Supervision has been facilitated by the Board of

Directors, the Board of Management and functional departments at the Company in its

1



inspection and supervision work. The activities of the Board of Supervision focus on the

following contents:

Supervising the activities of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management in
implementing the Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders.

Inspecting the operation situation and appraising periodic financial reports, checking
compliance with accounting standards and current financial regimes in accounting
work.

Inspecting compliance with legal provisions, the Company's Charter and internal
regulations.

Attending all meetings of the Board of Directors, contributing opinions on the

Company's production and business activities.

. Supervise the implementation of the Resolutions of the General Meeting of

Shareholders and the Decisions of the Board of Directors:
The implementation of the plan targets in 2024 approved by the General Meeting of

Shareholders is as follows:

Unit: Million VND

y Impiementation Implementation | TH 2024/ TH 2024/
No. Target Plan 2024
2024 2023 KH 2024 TH 2023
1 Total revenue 12.768 13,226 10,524 |1 103,6% | 125,7%
2 | Pre-tax Profit 2.503 2.772 3.396 | 110,7% 81,6%

The Company has made provisions for funds from the 2023 after-tax profit in
accordance with Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated March 22, 2024 of the
General Meeting of Shareholders (Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting of
Shareholders).

The Board of Directors has selected A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited
as the auditor of the Company's 2024 Financial Statements and assigned the General
Director to negotiate and sign a contract with the selected auditor in accordance with
the Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Company has completed the capital contribution to Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service

Joint Stock Company in accordance with the Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting

2




of Shareholders. Currently, the total amount of capital contributed by the Company to

Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company is VND 20,975,610.000,

equivalent to 27.24% of the charter capital.

The Company has completed the amendment of the Charter and supplemented and

revised the business lines in accordance with the Resolution of the 2024 General

Meeting of Shareholders.
The Board of Supervision has fully attended the meetings of the Board of Directors.

In 2024, the General Meeting of Shareholders issued 02 Resolutions and the Board of

Directors issued 16 Resolutions. The Resolutions of the General Meeting of

Shareholders and the Board of Directors were issued promptly, mainly focusing on the

contents to implement the organization, business plan, human resources work...

(Shareholders please see the detailed list):

Ti f Results of
No. Text symbols }me 2 Content ; . ° :
issue implementation
General meeting of shareholders
March 22, | Approval of the contents of the
01/2024/NQ- ’
1 Q 2024 2024 General Meeting of Fulfillment
DHCD
Shareholders.
August 20, | Approving the addition of
2024 business  lines;  dismissing
members of the Board of
L Supervisors  and  electing
2 il . Fulfillment
DHCD additional members of the
Board of Supervisors for the
remaining term IV (2022-
2027).
Board of Directors
Approving the time to hold the
1 01/2024/NQ- daiary 25, 2024 Annual General Meeting Fulfillment
HDQT 2024
of Shareholders.
February | Approval of the contents of the
5 | U2R0Z4NQ- 26,2024 | 2024 General Meeting of| Fulfillment
HDQT

Shareholders.
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No.

Text symbols

Time of
issue

Content

Results of
implementation

03/2024/NQ-
HDQT

April 22,
2024

Approval of the transaction
contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Long An Investment One
Member Limited Liability
Company (Internal related

person)

Fulfillment

04/2024/NQ-
HDQT

June 12,
2024

Approving the selection of
A&C Auditing Company to
audit the 2024 financial
statements of Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company;
Approving the transaction
contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Phu Nhuan Trading Joint
Stuck  Cuwpany  (Tulerual

relaled person).

Fulfillment

05/2024/NQ-
HDQT

July §, 2024

Approval of contract and
transaction between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Phu Nhuan Trading Joint
Stock Company

Fulfillment

06/2024/NQ-
HDQT

July 12,
2024

Through oblaining
shareholders’  opinions  in
writing (Electing additional
members of the Board of
Supervisors)

Fulfillment

07/2024/NQ-
HDQT

July 12,
2024

Through:

- Nominating Mr. Nguyen Le
Dung as a candidate to join the
Board of Directors of Vinh Loc
- Ben Thanh Service Joint
Stock Company for the term

Fulfillment

4




No.

Text symbols

Time of
issue

Content

Results of

implementation

2024-2029.

- Nominating Ms. Hoang Thi
Quynh Nhi as a candidate to
join the Board of Supervisors
of Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
for the term 2024-2029.

08/2024/NQ-
HDQT

August 7,
2024

Approval of the written
shareholders'
(Supplement and amendment of

the Company's business lines)

opinions

Fulfillment

09/2024/NQ-
HDQT

August 21,
2024

Approval of the General
Director's report on the first 6
months of 2024's operations
and the direction for the last 6
months of 2024.

Fulfillment

10

10/2024HQ-
HDQT

October 25,
2024

Approval of the contents on
leasing market stalls at Binh

Dien market.

Fulfillment

11

11/2024/NQ-
HDQT

December

3,2024

Approval of the main contents
of the transaction and approval
of the signing of the Service
Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Phu Nhuan Trading Joint
Stock Company.

Fulfillment

12

12/2024/NQ-
HDQT

December
3. 2024

Approval of the main contents
of the transaction and approval
of the signing of the Service
Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Vinaprint Joint Stock

Company.

Fulfillment




No.

Text symbols

Time of
issue

Content

Results of
implementation

13

13/2024/NQ-
HDQT

December
3, 2024

Approval of the main contents
of the transaction and approval
of the signing of the Service
Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Transimex Hi Tech Park
Logistics One Member Co.,
Ltd.

Fulfillment

14

14/2024/NQ-
HDQT

December
18, 2024

Approving the main contents of
the transaction and approving
the signing of the Service
Contract between Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company
and Transimex Port Toint Stock

Company.

Fulfillment

15

15/2024/NQ-
HDQT

December
18, 2024

Approving Ben Thanh Service
Joint Stock Company to sign
and execute fransaction
contracts with the following
companies: lransimex Hi lech
Park Logistics LLC, GF Sula

Technology LLC.

Fulfillment

16

16/2024/NQ-
HDQT

December
27,2024

Approving the business results
report for the first 9 months of
the year and estimated
performance in 2024, and
business orientation in 2025.

Fulfillment

2. Results of monitoring the activities of the Board of Directors and the Board of

General Directors:

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board have closely followed and implemented

the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Resolutions issued by the
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Board of Directors. The meetings or consultations and issuance of Resolutions of the Board of

Directors were carried out in accordance with the prescribed order and procedures.

The Board of Directors plays the role of guiding the Company's operations, providing

timely support and direction to the Executive Board in the management and operation of the

Company's operations, and regularly supervising the Executive Board in implementing

business plans and investment projects.

In 2024, the Board of Directors has implemented the Resolutions and instructions of the

Board of Directors, regularly monitored and made timely decisions in accordance with the

business situation of the unit and market fluctuations.

3. Evaluate the coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors, the

Board of Directors, the General Director and shareholders.

The Board of Supervision, the Board of Directors, the General Director and shareholders

have regular and close coordination, all for the common goal of the entire Company.

II. Appraisal of Financial Reports and assessment of the Company's performance

in 2024:

1. DBusiness results in 2024:

Unit: Million VND
Tmplementation | Implementation | TH 2024/ | TH 2024/
No. Target Plan 2024
2024 2023 KH 2024 TH 2023
1| Tatal vevenng 12.76R 13.226 10.524 | 103,6% 125,7%
Ineludo ;
- Rank depnsit inferest 959 1152 1.957 | 120,1% 5R8,9%
2 | Total cost 10.265 10.454 7.128 | 101,8% 146.,7%
Include :
- Financial contingency 650 1.370 920 | 210,8% 148.9%
costs
3 | Pre-tax Profit 2.503 2.772 3.396 | 110,7% 81,6%




Total revenue in 2024 i1s 13,226 million VND, reaching 103.6% of the plan and
increasing by 25.7% compared to 2023. In 2024, the Company has made efforts to find
customers to maximize the rental area, and actively implemented other services such as:
Installation and maintenance of solar panel systems; installation and maintenance of CCTV
systems; renovation and repair of construction works. Therefore, the revenue ratio increased
by 25.7% compared to 2023 and exceeded the plan approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Pre-tax profit in 2024 is VND 2,772 million, reaching 110.7% of the annual plan, down
18.4% compared to 2023. The Company's profit decreased compared to 2023 due to: (i) The
Company used bank deposits to continue contributing capital to Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service
Joint Stock Company, causing interest on deposits to decrease sharply, (ii) Increased financial
provision costs for this investment. However, compared to the 2024 plan, the Company's profit

exceeded 10.7% of the plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Financial situation and asset structure, capital sources as ot December 31,

2024:
Unit: Million VND
Balance as _ Balance as
Target of Proportion of Proportion | Increase/
12/31/2024 (%) | 12312023 | (%) decrease
1. TOTAL ASSETS 43.384 100% 41.792 100% 1.592
1.1/ Current assets 25.845 59,6% 29.920 71,6% (4.075)
Include:
(7.582)
- Money and cash equivalents 730 2.8% 8.312 27,8%
- Short-term financial i
) 23.900 92.5% 20.379 68.1% 3.521
investment
- Short-term receivables 1.215 4. 7% 1.229 4,1% (14)
1.2/ Long-term assets 17.539 40,4% 11.872 28,4% 5.667
Include: = =




Balance as Balance as
Target of - Proportion of Proportion | Increase/
12312024 | (%) 12/31/2023 ( %) decrease
- Fixed assets |
- Investment Properties 1.116 6.4% 1.218 10,3% (102)
- Long-term Work-in-Progress - -
- Long-term Financial
A 15.324 87,4% 9.318 78,4% 6.006
- Other Long-term Assets 1.098 6.2% 1.336 11,3% (238)
2. TOTAL CAPITAL 43.384 100% | 41.792 100% 1.592
2.1/ Liabilities 2.755 6,4% 3.031 7,3% (276)
- Short-term debt 2.166 78,6% 2.467 81,4% (301)
- Long-term debt 587 21,4% 563 18,6% 24
2.2/ equity 40.630 93,6% | 38.761 92,7% 1.869
- Contributed capital 31.507 77.5% 31.507 83,0% -
- Development investment fund 3.177 7.8% 3177 8,2% -
- Undistributed profit after tax 5.945 14,7% 4.077 10,5% 1.869

Review of financial situation at the end of the period:

* The Company's total assets increased by VND 1,592 billion, mainly due to the
Company's profits in 2024,

« The Company's asset structure fluctuated between the beginning and the end of the
period, the proportion of short-term assets to total assets at the end of the period decreased
compared to the beginning of the period because the Company continued to use cash to invest
in Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company. The capital structure did not fluctuate
much with the debt ratio accounting for only 6.4% of the total capital. The above asset and
capital structure ensures a high financial safety ratio.

* Long-term financial investments continue to record provisions in 2024, thereby
reducing the value of this investment. Provisions arise mainly from the main investment. In
2024, Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company continues to record operating

expense losses during project implementation.

* Other long-term assets decreased because the company is gradually allocating major

repair costs of fixed assets to operating expenses during the period.




The company's financial situation is safe and ensures liquidity with a high quick ratio

(about 11.9), low debt to equity ratio (about 6.78%).

The Company's debt situation in 2024.

Unit: VND

Year-end number

Beginning of year number

Value Preventive Value Preventive

Receivables from customers

843.960.028 439.452.757
Receivables from other
organizations and individuals,
including: 1.021.517.006 | (777.403.661) | 1.354.975.322 | (858.966.161)
Cam Thi Le Nga — Advance
payment for project legal
procedures - 360.528.688
Short-term deposits

- 50.000.000

229.978.082 118.234.072
Interest receivables from bank
deposits 791.538.924 | (777.403.661) | 871.049.418 | (858.966.161)

1.865.477.034

Total

(777.403.661)

1.839.264.935 | (858.966.161)

- The receivables from customers at the end of the period are all debts within the term,

which have been signed o conlivm e debl witli gach customer.

- During the vear, the outstanding advance payment of Ms. Cam Thi Le Nga was VND
360,528,688 and was fully refunded.
- Other short-term receivables VND 791,538,924: including the receivable amount of
VND 732,566,805 which is the debt of the 504 Nguyen Tat Thanh project related to the

Saigon Transport Mechanical Corporation (Samco Corporation). The company has

worked with Samco many times, however, Samco has sent documents to the enterprise

stating that there is not enough basis to pay this debt, therefore this debt is likely to be
lost and the dividend receivable of Ben Thanh Logistics Joint Stock Company is VND
44,838,836, the above two debts have been provisioned for 100% of the value.
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Long-term investment situation outside the enterprise as of December 31, 2024:

Unit: VND
List of enterprises with Provisioning
Investment Capital
capital investment of Ben Provision ratio
No. value contribution
Thanh Service Joint value
12/31/2024 ratio
Stock Company
Ben Thanh — Due Khai
1 | Real Estate Trading Joint 878.238.342 | 878.238.342 6.30% 100%
Stock Company
Vinh Loc — Ben Thanh
2 | Service Joint Stock | 20.975.610.000 | 5.651.441.425 27,24% 26.9%
Company
Total investment value | 21.853.848.342 | 6.529.679.767 29.88%

The total long-term investment capital outside the Company as of December 31, 2024 is

VN 71 853,848 347 (accounting for 69 36% of charter ecapital), an inerease nf VNI

7,375,610,000 compared to the beginning of the period, because during the period, the

Company completed the additional capital contribution to Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint

Stock Company according to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

- Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company: The total amount of capital
contributed by the Company to Vinh Loc - Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company is
VND 20,975,610,000, equivalent to 27.24% of the charter capital. The Vinh Loc

Conference Center Wedding Restaurant Project is being implemented and gradually

completed, expected to be put into operation in the third quarter of 2025.

- Ben Thanh - Duc Khai Real Estate Trading Joint Stock Company: The Company's

capital contribution to this unit is VND 878 million. The Company has made a

provision for 100% of the value of this capital contribution. As of December 31, 2024,

this Company has not completed the dissolution procedures.

IIT. Recommendations:

Through the review of the audited 2024 Financial Statement of Ben Thanh Service Joint

Stock Company, the Board of Supervision found that the report honestly and reasonably
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reflected the Company's financial situation as of December 31, 2024 as well as its business
results in 2024 in all material aspects. In addition, the Board of Supervision noted the

following issues to the Company:

- The Company needs to continue to monitor and handle bad debts of Ben Thanh
Logistics Joint Stock Company and Saigon Transport Mechanical Corporation.

- Maintain the management of receivables, continue to perform well the work of
reconciling and confirming periodic debts to ensure full legal basis for debts.

- Maintain stable business operations in the investment real estate sector. For the
business segment of other services according to the Company's orientation, to bring
about higher efficiency, the Board of Directors needs to manage well the business
expenses, develop annual cost plans, assign norms to monitor implementation, ensure
that expenses are reasonable, valid and economical.

- Balance cash flow needs, have a plan in using bank deposits to serve business needs to
choose appropriate deposit terms to ensure that deposit interest is earned at the most
optimal level.

IV. Board of Supervision Operation Plan for 2025

In 2025, the Board of Supervision will continue to properly exercise the powers and
responsibilities of the Board of Supervision as prescribed in the Law on Enterprises, the
Company Charter and the Board of Supervision Operating Regulations with the following

specific tasks:

- Inspect/supervise business operations and management activities according to
the functions and tasks prescribed by the Enterprise Law and the Company's
Charter.

- Supervise the compliance with the provisions of the Law, the Charter of the
organization and operation, the implementation of the Regulations and
Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Board of Directors
and the Board of General Directors of the Company.

- Appraise the 2025 Financial Report before submitting it to the General Meeting
of Shareholders. Review the reasonableness of the internal management
documents issued by the Company.

- Report on the Company's management process by the Board of Directors and
the operation of the Board of General Directors; the control process according to
the Company's Charter before the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual

meeting.
12



- The Board of Supervision meets at least 02 times a vear, according to the
Charter and the Company's Governance Regulations. Regularly exchange
professional knowledge and coordinate to perform work effectively.

- The Board of Supervision attends regular Board of Directors meetings when

summoned.

Above is the report ou the Board of Supervision activities in 2024 and the main directions

of activities in 2025.
Respectfully submit to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval.

Best regards.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISION

HEAD OF THE BOARD
Recipients:
- As above;
- Board Member, .
- Bourd uf Directors, /%L/:_
- Board of Supervision; — e
- Archived, DANG KIM DUNG
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1 SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY  SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

BOARD OF SUPERVISION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
AR RS A
No.:UL/ T I /BKS-2025 Ho Chi Minh City, February 1/, 2025
SUBMISSION

Regarding the selection of an Auditing Company for the 2025 Financial Statements

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No.39/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietmam;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of Ben Thanh Service Joint
Stock Company approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

After reviewing the capacity of independent auditing firms, the Board of Supervision
of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for congsideration the selection of an independent auditing unit to audit the
2025 financial statements as follows:

1. About criteria for sclecting Auditing Company

The Board of Supervisors proposes to the General Meeting of Shareholders the

following criteria for selecting an independent auditor:
A reputable independent auditor approved by the State Securities Commission and
the Ministry of Finance to audit public companies and listed organizations.

- Having a reasonable audit tee, consistent with the content, scope and progress of

the audit requested by Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company.
2. Proposal of the Board of Supervision
Based ou e aclual requueents ol accouuling aud audibg ol e Copaiy's
financial statements, the Board of Supervision respectfully proposes 03 (three) auditing
units to be included in the selection list for providing auditing services for the 2025
Financial Statements of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company as follows:

(1) A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited (A&C);

(2) Southern Accounting and Auditing Financial Consulting Services Company
(AASCS);

(3) RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited;



The Board of Supervision respectfully presents to the General Meeting of

Sharcholders:

- Approving the list of 03 (three) independent auditing companies mentioned above to
select to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock
Company.

- Approving the authorization for the Board of Directors of the Company to decide to
select an independent auditing company as proposed by the Supervisory Board to
audit and review the Company's 2025 Financial Statements and assigning the General
Director to sign an auditing service contract with the selected auditing company in
accordance with the provisions of law.

- The Board of Supervision shall supervise the quality of auditing the Financial
Statements in accordance with the regulations.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISION
HEAD OF THE BOARD

Recipients:

- As above, )
- Archived. / Z%ﬂﬂ’/{ _—
’[/K/,
G KIM DUNG



BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

_ 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC
i Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTS0 Email: benthanh[(@btsc.com.vih  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Bl o Senve & Carp

Na: 10/2025/TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 18, 2025

SUBMISSION
On Approval of the 2024 Business Performance Report
and the 2025 Business Plan

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
- Pursuant to the Law on Securities 2019 dated November 26, 2019;
- Pursuant to the current Charter of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company;,

The Board of Directors of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company respectfully
submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the report on business performance in
2024 and business plan in 2025 as follows:

A. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REPORT 2024:
(Unit of measure: VND)

Numerical | Tavpet Tmplementation
ordor 2024
1 Total revenue 13.226.000.000
2 Pre-tax Profit 2.772.000.000

B. BUSINESS PLAN 2025:
(Unit of measure: VNL)

Numcrical | Target Plan 2025
order

1 Total revenue 19.235.000.000

2 Pre-tax Profit 3.050.000.000

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and

approval.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients:

- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025;
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board;

- Save,




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC
— t::: - Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
= T"""[; Email: benthanhl{@btsc.com.vn  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Best 1 Serer & Corp

No; 11722025/ TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 18, 2025

SUBMISSION
Report on the operating remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors
in 2024 and the estimated operating remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors in 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Ren Thanh Service Joint Stock Campany;
- Bused on the actual business situation of the Company,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company the Report on the remuneration of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the estimated remuneration of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors in 2025, specifically as follows:

1. REPORT ON THE REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2024:

- Board of Directors' remuneration: VND 360.000.000 (In words: Three hundred and sixty
million VND). :

- Board of Supervisors' remuneration: VND 123.935.000 (7n words: One hundred an
twenty-three million nine hundred and thirty-five thousand VND). '

Total: VND 483.935.000 (In words: Four hundred and eighty-three million nin
hundred and thirty-five thousand VND).

In 2024, the Board of Directors paid remuneration to the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in the amount of VND 483.935.000, VND 8.065.000 less than the
content in Article 6 of Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders dated March 22, 2024, because on July 1. 2024, Mr. Le Ngoc
Nguyen Hoang - Head of the Board of Supervisors submitted a resignation letter. On August
20, 2024, the Company collected shareholders' opinions in writing and elected an additional
member of the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Dang Kim Dung.

2. ESTIMATE OF REMUNERATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2025:

- Remuneration for the Board of Directors: VND 360.000.000 (In words: Three
hundred and sixty million VND).

-  Remuneration for the Supervisory Board: VND 132.000.000 (/n words: One hundred
and thirty-two million VND).




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward. District 1. HCMC

- ' gt Phone: (028) 3914 0932 —3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
%TSC Email: benthanh1({@btsc.com.vn Website: www.btsc.com.vn

5 o Serve & Core

Total: VND 492.000.000 (In words: Four hundred and ninety-two million VND).
Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for consideration and

approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
g, Chairman o4

Recipients:

- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025;
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board;

- Save.




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

_ 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC
_ _ e Phone: (028) 3914 0932 —3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSC Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vh  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Best 10 Sore & Can
No; 12/2025/TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 18, 2025
SUBMISSION

Regarding profit distribution in 2024

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company;
- Based on 2024 business activities of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company the profit distribution plan for 2024 as

follows:
(Unit: Million VND)

No. Content Amount
1 | Pre-tax Profit 2024 27772
2 | Corporate income tax payable 610
3 | Deferred corporate income tax 1
4 | Profit after tax in 2024 [(1) —(2) — (3)] 2.161
5 Undistributed profit after tax until December 31, 2024 5.945
6 | Profit distribution plan
6.1 | Provision of funds from Profit after tax in 2024 (12%) 259
- Bonus fund for Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Company 86
Executive Board, Secretary of Board of Directors (4%)
- Reward Fund (3%) 65
- Welfare fund (5%) 108
6.2 | Pay cash dividends at a rate of 10%/Charter capital 3.151

7 | Remaining undistributed profit after tax 2.535




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

, 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC

- Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSC Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vn  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Bet i Jervo & Cam

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients: i
- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025,
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board:
- Save.




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District I, HCMC
. '""‘E‘” 3 Phone: (028) 3914 0932 —3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTo0C Email: benthanhl(@btsc.com.vin  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Bt b Servn & Cave
No; 13/2025/TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 18, 2025
SUBMISSION

On the dividend payment plan for 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/0OHI14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company;
- Pursuant to the 2025 business plan of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company the dividend payment plan for 2025, as
follows:

Expected plan to pay dividends from 2025 net profit at a rate of 5%/Charter capital
£ 2025 business results achieve the set plan.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

Recipients:
- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025;
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board;
- Save.




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward. District 1, HCMC
Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933 Fax: (028) 3914 0934

e o @

l—i_ fj . C Email: benthanhl(@btsc.com.vn  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

No; 1522025/TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 18, 2025
SUBMISSION

On adding business lines of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

To: General Meeting of Sharcholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant io the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QHI4 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter and current regulations of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock
Company;
- Pursuant to the business performance of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company;
Due to the need to expand the scalc of opcrations, in order to create all possibilities
to exploit business opportunities to the maximum. The Board of Directors of Ben Thanh
Service Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the General Meeting of

Shareholders for consideration and approval of the addition of the Company's business
lines, specifically as follows:

I. CHANGE OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS LINES

1. Add the following business lines:

No. Additional business name Industry | Main business line (In case the added
code business line is the main business line,
| mark X to select one of the declared
business lines) ﬁ@ﬁa
{ Packag.ing se‘rv‘ices (Except 8102 & NPG;
packaging of pesticides) =( "D GH
C handli Except ai tc g
_ " ;

2 argo an. ing (Except airpor 5224 % -
cargo handling) L Tg

2. Amendment of the Company Charter:

Amend Clause 1, Article 4 of the Company's business lines in the Charter of Ben
Thanh Service Joint Stock Company to reflect the addition of business lines in Section 1
above.



BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

.. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, HCMC

., . Phone: (028) 3914 0932 - 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
BTSC Email: benthanh1@btsc.com.vn  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

Best o Serwe & T

II. IMPLEMENTATION

Through the assignment/authorization of the Legal Representative to carry out
tasks related to changing the Company's business lines, including but not limited to the

following tasks:

- Carry out procedures related to changing business lines at competent State
agencies, including adjusting detailed content within the scope of business lines
approved by shareholders in this submission.

- Carry out other tasks related to changing the Company's business lines in
accordance with the provisions of the Law.

- Update the approved additional business lines according to the registration results
approved by competent State management agencies in the Company's charter.
Carry out information disclosure according to regulations.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients: '
- Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025;
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board:
- Save.




BEN THANH SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
390 Nguyen Cong Tru, Cau Ong LLanh Ward, District 1, HCMC
Phone: (028) 3914 0932 — 3914 0933  Fax: (028) 3914 0934
Email: benthanhl@btsc.com.vn  Website: www.btsc.com.vn

BTSC

Beat lo Serve & Care

No; 14/2025/TTr-HDQT Ho Chi Minh City, February 48.., 2025

SUBMISSION
On Approval of Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 2024

To: General Meeting of Sharcholders of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to Clause 2, Article 14 of the Charter of Ben Thanh Service Joint Stock
Company, the rights and duties of the General Meeting of Shareholders regarding the
approval of the Company's annual audited financial statements.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Sharecholders
oF Ben Thanh Service Toint Stock Company the 2024 financial statements audited by
A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited (attached is the full text of the 2024
audited financial statements).

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

Recipients:
Annual General Mceting of Sharcholders 2023,
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board:
Savo,
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company™) presents this statement together with the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31
December 2024.

Business highlights

Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company is an enterprise equitized from a State-owned company under the
Decision No. 3127/Qb-UB dated 16 July 2007 of the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The
Company has been operating in accordance with the Business Registration Certificate No. 0305246978,
registered for the first time on 04 October 2007 and amended for the 16" time on 02 July 2020, granted by
Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment.

The Company’s stocks were listed on Hanoi Stock Exchange with the stock code of BSC under the Decision
No. 804/QD-SGDHN dated 03 November 2010 and the Notice No. 1137/TB-SGDHN dated 20 December
2010 of Hanoi Stock Exchange on granting a Stock Listing License to the Company.

Head office
- Address : No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1. Ho Chi Minh City.
-~ Tel 1 +84 (028) 3914 0930
-  Fax :+84 (028) 3914 0934

The Company’s principal business activities are warehousing and goods storage.

Board of Management and Executive Board
The Board of Management and the Executive Board of the Company during the year and as of the dat
this statement include:

The Board of Management

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing date
Mr. Le Van Hung Chairman Re-appointed on 22 April 2022
Mr. Nguyen Le Dung Member Re-appointed on 22 April 2022
Ms. Le Thi Tuong Vy Member Appointed on 22 April 2022
Ms. Truong Thi Thanh Luan Member Appointed on 22 April 2022
Ms. Nguyen Kim Hau Member Appointed on 21 April 2023

The Supervisory Board

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing/Resigning datge
Mr. Le Ngoc Nguyen Hoang Head of the Board Resigned on 01 July 2024

Ms. Dang Kim Dung Head of the Board Appointed on 20 August 2024

Mr. Tu Vi Tri Member Re-appointed on 22 April 2022

Mr. Huynh Van Toan Member Appointed on 08 September 2023

The Board of Directors

Full name Position Appointing/Re-appointing date

Mr. Nguyen Le Dung General Director Re-appointed on 22 April 2022

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Phung Deputy General Director ~ Appointed on (| September 2023

Legal Representative
The Company’s legal representative during the year and as of the date of this statement is Mr. Nguyen Le
Dung — General Director (re-appointed on 22 April 2022).




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont.)

Auditors
A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. has been appointed to perform the audit on the Company’s
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements to give
a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance and the cash flows of the Company
during the year. In order to prepare these Financial Statements, the Board of Directors must:

e select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;

e make judgments and estimates reasonably and prudently;

e state clearly whether the accounting standards applied to the Company are followed or not, and all the
material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements;

e prepare the Financial Statements of the Company on the going-concern basis, except for the cases that
the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

o design and implement effectively the internal control system to minimize the risks of material
misstatements due to frauds or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors hereby ensures that all the proper accounting books of the Company have been fully
recorded and can fairly reflect the financial position of the Company at any time, and that all the accounting
books have been prepared in compliance with the applicable Accounting System. The Board of Directors is
also responsible for managing the Company’s assets and consequently has taken appropriate me
prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities.

preparation of the Financial Statements.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors hereby approves the accompanying Financial Statements, which give a true a
view of the financial position as of 31 December 2024 of the Company, its financial performance and its
cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements.

Date: 18 February 2025



A&C AUDITING AND CONSULTING CO., LTD. (@ ba kerti[[y

Head Office 102 Truong Son St., Ward 2, Tan Binh Dist, Ho Chi Mish City, Vietnam Tel; 484 {028) 3547 2972 kttvia-c.comvn

BranchinHaMoi 40 Giang Vo §t, Dong Da Dist., Ha Mai City, Vietnam Tel:+84 (024) 3736 7879 kitwhn@a-c.comun A & C

Branch in Nha Trang : Lot STHOS4.01, St Mo.13 Le Hong Phonq [ Uiien Area, P Hai Ward, Nia Tramg Gty Visnam Tk +84 {0258) 2465151 kitvnt@a-c.comvn

Branchin Can The :[5-13 Vo Nouyen Giap St, Cai Rang Dist, Gan Tho City, Vietnam Tel:+B4[0292) 3764995  kitvct@a-c.comvn WWw.a-c.com.vn

No. 1.0160/25/TC-AC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: THE SHAREHOLDERS, THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company
(hereinafier referred to as “the Company™), which were prepared on 18 February 2025 (from page 5 to page 31),
including the Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2024, the Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement for the
fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation, true and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements; and
responsible for the internal control as the Company’s Board of Directors determines nccessary to enable the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements to be free from material misstatement due to fraud or

error.

Responsibilities of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing (VSA). Those standards require that we comply with
ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion of Auditors
In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position

as of 31 December 2024 of Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company, its financial performance and its cash
flows for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statemep
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Ho Van T Vo Thanh Cong

Partner Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 0092-2023-008-1 Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 1033-2023-008-1

Authorized Signatory
Ho Chi Minh City, 20 February 2025

A&C Audifing and Consulting Ce., Ltd. trading as Baker Tilly A&C is a member of the global network 4
of Baker Tilly International Lid., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
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This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes 1o the Financial Siatenents.

BALANCE SHEET
As of 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code
CURRENT ASSETS 100
Cash and cash equivalents 110
Cash 111
Cash equivalents 112
. Short-term financial investments 120
Trading securities 121
Provisions for devaluation of trading securities 122
Held-to-maturity investments 123
Short-term receivables 130
Short-term trade receivables 131
Short-term prepayments to suppliers 132
Short-term inter-company receivables 133
Receivables according to the progress of construction
contract 134
Receivables for short-term loans 135
Other short-term receivables 136
Allowance for short-term doubtful debts 137
Deficit assets for treatment 139
. Inventories 140
Inventories 141
Allowance for devaluation of inventories 149
Other current assets 150
Short-term prepaid expenses 151
Deductible VAT 152
Taxes and other receivables from the State 153
Trading Gaovernment bonds 154
Other current assets 155

Note

V.1

V.2a

V.3
V.4

Ending balance

Unit: VND

Beginning balance

25.845.072.463

725.809.027
729.809.027

23.900.000.000

23.900.000.000

1.215.263.436
843.960.028
127.190.063

1.021.517.006
(777.403.661)

24,945.000
(24.945.000)

29.919.569.233

8.311.652.529
1.311.652.529
7.000.000.000

20.378.805.480

20.378.805.480

1.229.111.224
439.452.757
248.812.450

1.399.812.178
(858.966.161)

24.945.000
(24.945.000)
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (cont.)

ITEMS
B- NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Long-term trade receivables

Long-term prepayments to suppliers
Working capital in affiliates

Long-term inter-company receivables
Receivables for long-term loans

Other long-term receivables

Allowance for long-term doubtful debts

B L= T e

II. Fixed assets

1. Tangible fixed assets

- Historical cost

- Accumulated depreciation
2. Financial leased assets

- Historical cost

- Accumulated depreciation
3. Intangible fixed assets

- Initial cost

- Accumulated amortization

III. Investment property
- Historical costs
- Accumulated depreciation

IV. Long-term assets in process
. Long-term work in process
Construction-in-progress

B

Long-term financial investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in joint ventures and associates
Investments in other entities

Provisions for devaluation of long-term financial
investments

3. Held-to-maturity investments

L RS e e

V1. Other non-current assets

Long-term prepaid expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Long-term components and spare parts
Other non-current assets

s L

TOTAL ASSETS

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes fo the Financial Statements.

Code

200

210
211
212
213
214
215
216
219

220
221
222
223

230
231
232

240

241
242

250
251
252
253

254
235

260
261
262
263
268

270

Note

V.7

V.8

V.2b
V.2b

V.2b

V.9
V.10

Ending balance

Beginning balance

17.539.138.010

2.807.271.000
(2.807.271.000)

97.200.000
(97.200.000)

1.116.592.928
3.799.189.568
(2.682.596.640)

15.324.168.575

20.975.610.000
878.238.342

(6.529.679.767)

1.098.376.507

11.872.483.381

-

2.807.271.000
(2.807.271.000)

97.200.000
{97.200.0010)

1.218.296.6%6
3.799.189.568
(2.580.892.872)

]

9.318.558.575

13.600.000.000
878.238.342

(5.159.679.767)

1.335.628.110

1.031.571.032 1.268.363.635
66.805.475 67.264.475
43.384.210.473 41.792.052.614
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (cont.)

Beginning balance

ITEMS Code  Note Ending balance
C - LIABILITIES 300 2.754.607.519
1. Current liabilities 310 2.167.607.519
1. Short-term trade payables il V.11 75.002.631
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 V.12 142.789.599
3. Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget 313 V.13 400.515.870
4, Payables to employees 34 V.14 246.862.286
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 V.15 258.000.000
6. Short-term inter-company payables 316 Z
7. Payables according to the progress of construction
contracts 317 =
8. Short-term unearned revenue 318 i
9.  Other short-term payables 319 V.léa,c 799.087.978
10. Short-term borrowings and financial leases 320 5
1. Provisions for short-term payables 321 4
12. Bonus and welfare funds 322 V.17 245.349.155
13. Price stabilization fund 323 ¥
14. Trading Government bonds 324 ¢
Il. Non-current liabilities 330 587.000.000
1. Long-term trade payables 35 =
L. Long-terim advances from customers 12 -
3. Long-term accrued expenses 333 ¥
4. Inter-company payables for working capital 334 -
5. Long-term inter-company payables 335 -
6. Long-term unearned revenue 336 =
7. Other long-term payables 337  V.l6b,c 587.000.000
8. Long-term borrowings and financial leases 338 =
9. Convertible bonds 330 =
10. Preferred shares 340 =
11. Deferred income tax liability 341 #
12. Provisions for long-term payables 342 2
13. Science and technology development fund 343 <

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statenents.

3.030.682.012

2.467.682.012
107.224.112
272.875.500
411.593.471
249.282.622
260.295.000

246.483.835
795.379.720

124.547.752

563.000.000

563.000.000
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (coni.)

ITEMS Code  Note Ending balance Beginning balance

D- OWNER'S EQUITY 400 40.629.602.954 38.761.370.602
I.  Owner's equity 410 40.629.602.954 38.761.370.602
. Owner's capital 4]1] V.18 31.507.470.000 31.507.470.000
- Ordinary shares carrying voiing rights 4lla 31.307.470.000 31.307.470.0000
- Preferred shares 411b E =
2. Share premiums 412 - H
3. Bond conversion options 413 2 -
4, Other sources of capital 414 & -
5. Treasury stocks 415 4 &
6. Differences on asset revaluation 416 g -
7. Foreign exchange differences 417 i =
8. Investment and development fund 418 V.18 3.176.694.781 3.176.694.781
9. Business arrangement supporting fund 419 - .
10, Other funds 420 s -
I1. Retained earnings 421 V.18 5.945.438.173 4.077.205.82]
- Retained earnings accumulated

to the end of the previous period 421a 3.784.205.821 - 4.077.203.821
- Retained earnings of the current period 4216 2161232352 - =
12. Construction investment fund 422 &
I, Other sources and lunds 430 #

Sources of expenditure 431 =
2. Fund to form fixed assets 432 =

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 440 43.384.210.473

/ a (/

,7”" o (g
A5, . il "—.____r--‘-___
"

Nguyen Thi Kim Nga Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi
Preparer Chief Accountant

This statenient should be read in conjunclion with the Notes to the Financial Statements. 8



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District |, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

INCOME STATEMENT

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS Code Note

1. Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of

Current year

Unit: VND

Previous year

services 01 VL1 11.150.559.393 7.706.413.542
2. Revenue deductions 02 = 3
3. Netrevenue 10 11.150.559.393 7.706.413.542
4. Cost of sales 11 V1.2 5.186.240.347 2.203.393.056
5. Gross profit 20 5.964.319.046 5.503.020.486
6. Financial income 21 VI3 2.075.664.801 2.817.681.381
7. Financial expenses 22 Vi4 1.752.227.885 1.194.673.705

In which: Loan interest expenses 23 i )
8. Selling expenses 15 . .
9, General and administration expenses 26 VL5 3.515.715.522 3.730.314.450
10. Net operating profit 30 2.772.040.440 3.395.713.712
11. Other incume 31 a =
12. Other expenses 32 - -
13. Other profit 40 - -
14, Total accounting profit before tax 50 2.772.040.440 3.395.713.712
15, Current income tax sl V.13 610.349.088 709.935.142
16. Deferred income tax 52 V.10 459.000 20.541.000
17. Profit after tax 60 2.161.232.352 2.665.237.570
18. Basic earnings per share 70  VIea,b 604 753
19, Diluted earnings per share 71  VL6a,b 604 753

P o 4dIGhi Minh City, 18 Febeaary 2025
; . Ggll\lé TY.
Y S [ ssmk
- = o S—
ol oy

Nguyen Thi Kim Nga Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi = en Le Dung
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Noles to the Financial Statements. 9



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No, 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District [, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

IL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments
Depreciation/Amortization of fixed assets and
investment properties

Provisions and allowances

Exchange gain/(loss) due to revaluation of
monetary items in foreign currencies
Gain/(loss) from investing activities
Interest expenses

Others

Operating profit before

changes of working capital
Increase/(decrease) of receivables
Increase/(decrease) of inventories
Increase/(decrease) of payables
Increase/(decrease) of prepaid expenses
Increase/(decrease) of trading securities
Interests paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other cash inflows

Other cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases and construction of fixed assets

and other non-current assets

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

and other non-current assets

Cash outflow for lending, buying debt instruments
of ather entities

Cash recovered from lending, selling debt instruments
of other entities

Investments in other entities

Withdrawals of investments in other entities
Interest earned, dividends and profits received

Net cash flows front investing activities

Code

01

02
03

04
05
06
07

a8
09
10
B
12
13
14
15
16
17

20

21

22

Note

VI3

V.13
V.17
V.17

This statement should be read in conjunction with the Notes (o the Financial Siatements.

Current year

Unit: VND

Previous year

2.772.040.440

101.703.768
1.370.000.000

(1.151.664.815)

3.092.079.393
125.581.798
(396.182.503)
236.792.603

(611.042.481)
46.620.000
(218.818.597)

3.395.713.712

101.703.768
915.117.500

(1.981.701.315)

2.430.833.665
1.276.692.338
1.882.500
386.646.251
{1.268.363.635)

(848.760.083)
10.470.000
(256.780.000)

2.275.040.213

1.732.621.036

(45.811.041.096)

42.289.846.576
(7.375.610.000)

1.039.920.805

(46.972.427.398)

52.593.621.918

25.000.000
2.259.017.928

(9.856.883.715)

7.905.212.448




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District |, Ho Chi Minh City,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Cash Flow Statement (cont,)

ITEMS Code  Note Current year Previous year

III. Cash flows from financing activities

1. Proceeds from issuing stocks and capital contributions

from owners 31 . 3
2. Repayment for capital contributions and re-purchases
of stocks already issued 32 . .
3. Proceeds from borrowings 33 - -
4. Repayment for loan principal 34 = .
5.  Payments for financial leased assets 35 - -
6. Dividends and profit paid to the owners 36 - (1.570.128.000)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 - (1.570.128.000)
Net cash flows during the year 50 (7.581.843.502) 8.067.705.484
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 60 V.l 8.311.652.529 243.947.045
Effects of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates 61 - =
Ending cash and cash equivalents 70 V.l 729.809.027 8.311.652.529
o Chi Minh City, 18 February 2025
»/—J.ﬁf&’/f—- Q%/
i e 1
:_'_':_._.-— - .-___..--"""-_.___
Nguyen Thi Kim Nga Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi A
Preparer Chief Accountant ““““@eneral Director

This sictement should be read in conjunction with the Notes (o the Financial Stelements. Ll



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District |, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

IL.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ownership form
Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™) is a joint stock

company.

Operating field
Operating fields of the Company are commercial trading and servicing.

Principal business activities
Principal business activities of the Company are to lease premises, rooms and warehouses and yards;
to sell fresh flowers and motorbike spare parts.

Normal operating cycle
Normal operating cycle of the Company is within 12 months.

Structure of the Company

Affiliate

The Company has an affiliate which is not a legal entity and does accounting works dependently, i.e.
Logistics Service Center, located at No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District I,
Ho Chi Minh City.

Associate

The Company only invests in Vinh Loc — Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company, located at Lot
ll.1 1, Road Ne. 5, Vinh Loe Industrial Park, Binh Hung Hoa B Ward, Binh Tan District, Ho Chi Minh
City. The principal business aclivity ol this associate is to provide catering services. As of the balance
sheet date, the Company’s capital contribution rate at this associate is 27,24%, equivalent to voting
ratc and ownership ratec.

Statement of information comparability on the Financial Statements
The corresponding figures of the previous year can be comparable with figures of the current year.

Headcount
As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s headcount is 14 (headcount at the beginning of the year:
13).

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Fiscal year
The fiscal year of the Company is from 01 January to 31 December annually.

Accounting currency unit
The accounting currency unit is Vietnamese Dong (VND) since the Company’s transactions are

primarily made in VND.

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statemenis 1.2
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

IIL.

L.

IVv.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Company applies the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, issued in accordance with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, the
Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 and other Circulars guiding the implementation
of Vietnamese Accounting Standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements.

Statement of the compliance with the Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, which were issued together with the
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21
March 2016 as well as other Circulars guiding the implementation of Vietnamese Accounting
Standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention
All the Financial Statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for the information related to
cash flows).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term investments of
which the due dates do not exceed 3 months from the dates of the investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value
as of the balance sheet date.

Financial investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Investments are classified as held-to-maturity inyestments that the Company intends and is able to
hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments of the Company include held-to-maturity term deposits
for the purpose of receiving periodical interest.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost. After initial recognition, these .
investments are recorded at recoverable value. Interest from these held-to-maturity investments after
acquisition date is recognized in the profit or loss on the basis of the interest income to be received. -
Interest incurred prior to the Company’s acquisition of held-to-maturity investments is deducted to the
costs as at the acquisition time.

When there are reliable evidences proving that a part or the whole investment cannot be recovered and
the loss is reliably determined, the loss is recognized as financial expenses during the year while the
investment value is derecognized.

Investments in associate

An associate is an entity which the Company has significant influence but not the control to govern
the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is the right to participate in making the
associate’s financial and operating policies but not control those policies.

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 13




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street. Cau Ong Lanh Ward. District 1. Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

Initial recognition

Investments in associate are initially recognized at costs, including the cost of purchase or capital
contributions plus other directly attributable transaction cost. In case of investment in non-monetary
assets, the costs of the investment are recognized at the fair value of non-monetary assets at the arising
time.

Dividends and profit incurred prior to the acquisition of investments are deducted into the investment
costs. Dividends and profit incurred after the acquisition of investments are recorded into the
Company’s financial income. Particularly, the dividends paid in form of shares are not recorded as an
increase in costs, but the increases in quantity of shares is followed up

Provisions for impairment of investiments associate

Provisions for impairment of investments in associate are made when the associate suffers from losses
at the rate equal to the difference between the actual capital invested by investors in associate and the
actual owner’s equity multiplying (x) by the Company’s ownership rate of charter capital actually
invested by the Company in associate. If the associate is consolidated into Consolidated Financial
Statements, the basis for impairment provisions is the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Increases/(decreases) in the provision for impairment of investments in associate are recorded into
financial expenses as of the balance sheet date.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities
Investments in equity instruments of other entities include such investments in equity instruments that
do not enable the Company to have the control, joint control or significant influence on these entities.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognized at costs, including cost of
purchase or capital contribution plus other directly attributable transaction costs. Dividends and profit
incurred prior to the acquisition of investments are deducted into investment costs. Dividends and
profit incurred after the acquisition of investments are recorded into the Company’s financial income.
Particularly, the dividends paid in form of shares are not recorded as an increase in costs, but the
increases in quantity of shares is followed up

Provisions for impairment of investments in equity instruments of other entities are made as follows:

e For investments in listed shares or fair value of investments which is reliably measured, provisions
are made on the basis of the market value of shares.

e For investments of which the fair value cannot be measured at the time of reporting, provision is
made based on the losses suffered by investees, with the amount is defined by the difference
between owners® actual contributed capital and the total owners® equity as of the balance sheet
date multiplied (x) by the Company’s rate of charter capital owning in these investees.

4
%
=
*
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Increases/decreases in the provisions for impairment of investments in equity instruments of other
entities as of the balance sheet date are recorded into financial expenses.

4.  Receivables
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is made according the
following principles:
o Trade receivables reflect receivables concerning the commercial nature arising from purchase and
sale transactions between the Company and customers who are independent to the Company,
inclusive of receivables for the exports entrusted to other entities.

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read mr conjunction seith the Financial Statements 14



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District I, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

* Other receivables reflect receivables not concerning the commercial nature and irelevant to
purchase and sale transactions.

Allowance is made for each doubtful debt on the basis of the estimated loss.

Increases/decreases in the obligatory allowance for doubtful debts as of the balance sheet date are
recorded into general and administration expenses.

Inventories
Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Costs of inventories comprise costs of purchases and other directly relevant costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and conditions.

Stock-out costs are determined in accordance with the weighted average method and recorded in line
with the perpetual method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Allowance for devaluation of inventories is recognized for cach type of inventories when their costs
are higher than their net realizable values. For services in progress, allowance is recognized for each
type of services at their own specific prices. Increases/decreases in the obligatory allowance for
devaluation of inventories as of the balance sheet date are recorded into costs of sales.

Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses incurred and relevant to financial performance in several
fiscal years. Prepaid expenses of the Company include expenses of asset repair.

Expenses of asset repair are allocated into expenses in accordance with the straight-line method for the
maximum period of 24 months.

Operating leased assets

A lense is classificd as an operating lease if it ransfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident
to ownership belonging to the lessor. The lease expenses are allocated in the Company’s operation
costs in accordance with the straight-line method over the lease term and do not depend on the method
of lease payment.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated depreciation. Historical
costs of tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Company to bring the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other expenses arising subsequent to initial recognition are
included into historical costs of fixed assets only if it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of these assets. Those
which do not meet the above conditions will be recorded into operation costs during the year.

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, gain or loss arising from such disposal (i.e. the
difference between the net proceeds from the sale of the asset and their carrying value) is included in
the income or the expenses during the year.

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read in confuuiction with the Financial Siatenents 15




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

10.

11.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated in accordance with the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The depreciation years applied are as follows:

Fixed assets Years
Buildings and structures 10 -20
Machinery and equipment 03 -07
Vehicles 06-10
Office equipment 03 -05

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are determined by their initial costs less accumulated amortization.

The Company’s intangible fixed asset is computer software. Expenses attributable to computer
software, which is not a part associated with the relevant hardware, will be capitalized. Costs of
computer software include all the expenses paid by the Company until the date the software is put into
use. Computer software is amortized in accordance with the straight-line method in 5 years.

When an intangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its initial costs and accumulated amortization are
written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

Investment properties

Investment properties are houses owned by the Company. Investment properties for lease are
measured at their historical costs less accumulated depreciation. Historical costs include all the
expenses paid by the Company or the fair value of other considerations given to acquire the assets up
to the date of its acquisition or construction.

Expenses related to investment properties arising subsequent Lo initial recognition should be added to
the expenses of the investment properties when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess
of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, will flow to the
Company.

When the investment properties are sold or disposed, its historical costs and accumulated depreciation
are written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposals is included in the income or the
expenses during the year.

[nvestment properties, i.e. houses for lease, are depreciated in accordance with the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives, i.e. from 25 years to 55 years.

Payables and accrued expenses
Payables and accrued expenses are recorded for the amounts payable in the future associated with the
goods and services received. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates for the

amounts payable.

The classification of payables as trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables is made on the

basis of following principles:

e Trade payables reflect payables of commercial nature arising from the purchase of goods,
services, or assets, of which the seller is an independent entity with the Company.

e Accrued expenses reflect expenses for goods, services received from suppliers or supplied to
customers but have not been paid, invoiced or lack of accounting records and supporting
documents; pay on leave payable to employees; and accrual of operation expenses.

e Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of
goods or provisions of services.

The payables and accrued expenses are classified as short-term and long-term items in the Balance
Sheet on the basis of their remaining term as of the balance sheet date.

These Notes formn an integral part of and shauld be read in compunction with the Financial Statements |6



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 3| December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

12.

13.

14.

Owner’s capital
The owner’s capital is recorded according to the actual amounts contributed by shareholders.

Profit distribution
Profit after tax is distributed to the shareholders after appropriation for funds under the Charter of the
Company as well as legal regulations and after getting approval from the General Meeting of

Shareholders.

The distribution of profit to the shareholders is made with consideration toward non-cash items in the
retained earnings that may affect cash flows and payment of dividends such as profit due to
revaluation of assets contributed as investment capital, profit due to revaluation of monetary items.
financial instruments and other non-cash items.

Dividends are recorded as payables upon approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Recognition of revenue and income

Revenue from provisions of services

Revenue from provisions of services shall be recognized when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is
entitled to return the services provided under specific conditions, the revenue is recognized only
when these specific conditions are no longer existed and the buyer is not entitled to return the
services provided.

o The Company received or shall probably receive the economic benefits associated with the
provision of services.

o The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of reporting period can be measured reliably.

o The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

In the case that the services are provided in several accounting periods, the determination of revenue is
done on the basis of the volume of works done as of the balance sheet date.

Revenues from operating lease

Revenue from operating lease is recognized in accordance with the straight-line method during the
lease term. Rentals received in advance for several periods are allocated to revenues in consistence
with the lease term.

Interest
Interest is recorded, based on the term and the actual interest rate applied in each particular period.

Dividends and profit shared

Dividends and profit shared are recognized when the Company has the right to receive dividends or
profit from the capital contribution. Particularly, the dividends paid in form of shares are not recorded
as an increase in value, but the increasing quantity of shares is followed up.
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District |, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

13.

16.

Expenses
Expenses are those that result in outflows of the economic benefits and are recorded at the time of

transactions or when incurrence of the transaction is reliable regardless of whether payment for
expenses is made or not.

Expenses and their corresponding revenues are simultaneously recognized in accordance with
matching principle. In the event that matching principle conflicts with prudence principle, expenses
are recognized based on the nature and regulations of accounting standards in order to guarantee that
transactions can be fairly and truly reflected.

Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax includes current income tax and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is the tax amount computed based on the taxable income. Taxable income is
different from accounting profit due to the adjustments of temporary differences between tax and
accounting figures, non-deductible expenses as well as those of non-taxable income and losses brought

forward.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is the amount of corporate income tax payable or refundable due to temporary
differences between book values of assets and liabilitics serving the preparation of the Financial
Statements and the values for tax purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all the
temporary taxable differences. Deferred income tax assets are recorded only when there is an
assurance on the availability of taxable income in the future against which the temporarily deductible
differences can be used.

Carrying values of deferred corporate income tax assets are considered as of the balance sheet date and
will be reduced to the rate that ensures encugh taxable income against which the benefits from part of
or all of the deferred income tax can be used. Deferred corporate income tax assets, which have not
been recorded before, are considered as of the balance sheet date and are recorded when there is
certainly enough taxable income to use these unrecognized deferred corporate income tax assets.

Neferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are determined at the estimated rate to
bo applied in tho yoar when the assots are recovered or the liabilities are settled based on the effective
tax rates as of the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax is recognized n the Income Statement. In
the case that deferred income tax is related to the items of the owner’s equity, corporate income tax
will be included in the owner’s equity.

The Company shall offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if:
e The Company has the legal right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities; and
o Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are relevant to corporate income tax
which is under the management of one tax authority either:
- Of the same subject to corporate income tax; or
- The Company has intention to pay current income tax liabilities and current income tax assets
on a net basis or recover tax assets and settle tax liability simultaneously in each future period
to the extent that the majority of deferred income tax liabilities or deferred income tax assets
are paid or recovered.

These Notes form an integral part of and shonld be read in conjunction with the Financial Statemems 18




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Neuyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District I, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

17.

18.

2u.

Related parties

A party is considered a related party of the Company in case that party is able to control the Company
or to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the Company. A
party is also considered a related party of the Company in case that party is under the same control or
is subject to the same material effects.

Considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of relationship is focused more than its legal
form.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in manufacturing
or providing products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in
manufacturing or providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic
environments.

The segment information is prepared and presented in conformity with the accounting policies
applicable to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements of the Company.

ANNITIONAT INEFORMATION ON THF ITFMS OF THF RAT ANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cash on hand 26.029.004 10.884.202
Demand deposits in banks 703.780.023 1.300.768.327
Cash equivalents - 7.000.000.000
Total 729.809.027 8.311.652.529

Financial investments
The Company’s lnancial ivestinents include held-to-matunity fnvestinents and fnvestinents in ullic
entities. The Company’s financial investments are as follows::

Held-to-maturity investments
This is reflects the bank deposits of which the term is more than 3 months.

Ending balance Beginning balance
Viet Capital Commercial Joint Stock Bank (BVBank) 18.900.000.000 13.378.805.480
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank
(PVcomBank) 5.000.000.000 7.000.000.000
Total 23.900.000.000 20.378.805.480

These Notes form an integral part of and showld be read in compunciion with the Financlal Siaiemenis 19




BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

MNotes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

2.

1]

(i)

Investments in other entities

Ending balance Beginning balance
Original Original
amount Provision amount Provision

20.975.610.000 (5.651.441.425) 13.600.000.000 (4.281.441.425)

Investments in joint ventures, associate
Vinh Loc — Ben Thanh Services Joint

Stock Company 20.975.610.000 (5.651.441.425) 13.600.000.000 (4.281.441.425)

Investments in other entities 878.238.342  (878.238.342) 878.238.342 (878.238.342)
Ben Thanh - Duc Khai Property
Corporation (! 878.238.342  (878.238.542) 878.238.342 (878.238.342)

Total 21.853.848.342 (6.529.679.767) 14.478.238.342 (5.159.679.767)

According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 0315958861, registered for the first time on 14
October 2019 and amended for the 5" time on 22 August 2024, granted by Ho Chi Minh City
Department of Planning and Investment, the Company invested an amount of VND 20.975.610.000 in
Vinh Loc — Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company, equivalent to 27,24% of charter capital.

According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 4103013084 dated 20 April 2009, granted by
Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment, the Company invested an amount of VND
1.500.000.000 in Ben Thanh - Duc Khai Property Corporation, equivalent to 6,3% of charter capital.

Fair value
The Company has not measured the fair value of the investments because there is no specific
instruction on measurement of fair value.

Operations of the joint ventures, associates and the investments in other entities

Vinh Loc — Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company is currently in the phase of investment and
construction and has not yet come into business operations. Ben Thanh - Duc Khai Property
Corporation is going to be dissolved.

Provisions for investments in other entities

Changes in provisions for investments in other entities are as follows:
Current year

Beginning balance 3.159.679.767

Extraction of provisions 1.370.000.000

Liquidation of investments i

6.529.679.767

Previous year
4.814.817.822

920.000.000
(575.138.055)
5.159.679.767

Ending balance

Short-term trade receivables
Beginning balance

Ending balance

Receivables from related parties 636.960.028 127.852.757
Transimex Hi Tech Park Logistics Co., Ltd. 42.850.080 112.927.157
Phu Nhuan Trading Joint Stock Company - 14,925,600

Transimex Port Corporation
Vinaprint Corporation

458.733.258
[35.376.690

311.600.000

Receivables from other customers 207.000.000

Gems Fortuna Company Limited - 220.000.000

Mr. Dang Trung Tin 85.000.000 85.000.000

Other customers 122.000.000 6.600.000

Total 843.960.028 439.452.757
These Notes forin an infegral part of and should be read in confunction with the Financial Statements 20
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

4. Prepayments to suppliers

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Rong Viet Construction Architecture Company
Limited
Digital Era Electronics and Telecommunications

245.587.950

Company Limited 39.939.000 -
Nam Do Construction and Interior Decoration

Company Limited 79.166.063 -
Other suppliers 8.085.000 3.224.500
Total 127.190.063 248.812.450

5. Other short-term receivables
Ending balance Beginning balance
Value Allowance Value Allowance

Ms. Cam Thi Le Nga - advances for

carrying out project legal procedures - - 360.528.688 -
Short-term deposits - - 50.000.000 -
Bank deposit interest to be received 229.978.082 - 118.234.072 -
Other short-term receivables 791.538.924 (777.403.661) 871.049.418 (858.966.161)

Total 1.021.517.006 (777.403.661)

1.399.812.178 (858.966.161)

6.  Doubtful debts
Ending balance

Beginning balance

Overdue Original Recoverable Overdue

Original  Recoverable

period amount amount period amount amount
Saigon Transportation
Mechanical Corporation -
receivables for project More than 3 More than 3
investment years 732.566.805 - years 732.566.805
Ben Thanh Logistics Joint
Stock Company — More than 3 More than 3
dividends payable years  44.836.856 - years  44.836.856
Mr. Le Tan Tam -
receivables for payment  More than 3 More than 3
made on his behalf years - - years  81.562.500 -
Total 777.403.661 < §58.966.161 .

Changes in allowances for doubtful debts are as follows:

Current year

Previous year

Beginning balance 858.966.161 861.966.161
Reversal of allowances - (3.000.000)
Debt treatment (81.562.500) -
Ending balance 777.403.661 858.966.161
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

7.  Tangible fixed assets

Machinery
Buildings and and Office
structures equipment Vehicles equipment Total
Historical costs
Beginning balance 1.325.446.000 55.160.000 8035.400.000 621.265.000 _ 2.807.271.000
Ending balance 1.325.446.000 55.160.000 _ 805.400.000 621.265.000  2.807.271.000
In which:
Assets fully depreciated but still in use 1.325.446.000 55.160.000 805.400.000 621.265.000  2.807.271.000
Assets waiting for liquidation - - - - 5
Depreciation
Beginning balance 1.325.446.000  55.160.000  805.400.000 621.265000 _ 2.807.271.000
Ending balance 1.325.446.000 55.160.000 _ 805.400.000  621.265.000 _ 1.807.271.000

Net book values
Beginning balance = B

Ending balance = :

In which:
Assets temporarily not in use - =
Assets waiting for liquidation - -

8.  Investment property

Historical costs
Beginning balance
Ending balance

In which:
Assets fully depreciated but still leasing

Depreciation

Beginning balance
Depreciation during the year
Ending balance

Net book values
Beginning balance
Ending balance

House

3.799.189.568

3.799.189.568

759.789.626

2.580.892.872
101.703.768

2.682.596.640

1.218.296.696

1.116.592.928

According to Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 05 “Investment property”, it is required to present
fair value of investment property as of the balance sheet date. However, the Company has not had

conditions to measure fair value of investment property.

List of investment properties as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Accumulated Net book
Historical costs depreciation values
Premises at Tam Binh Market 659.700.000 529.064.170 130.635.830
Premises at Binh Dien Market 1.446.945.500 542.604.600 904.340.900
House at No. 75-77 Calmette 1.692.544.068 1.610.927.870 81.616.198
Total 3.799.189.568 2.682.596.640 1.116.592.928
9. Long-term prepaid expenses

This item reflects expenses for repair of assets for lease.
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

10. Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax assets are related to temporarily deductible differences . Details during the year

are as follows:

Current year Previous year
Beginning balance 67.264.475 87.805.475
Inclusion into operation results (459.000) (20.541.000)
Ending balance 66.805.475 67.264.475

The corporate income tax rate used for determining deferred income tax assets is 20%.

11. Short-term trade payables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Rong Viet Construction Architecture Company
Limited 44.205.831 -
Trung Loi Company Limited 30.796.800 -
Nam Do Construction and Interior Decoration Company
Limited - 67.117.232
Solar Technology Solutions Company Limited - 29.587.680
Other suppliers - 10.519.200
Total 75.002.631 107.224.112

12. Short-term advances from customers

Ending balance Beginning balance
Short-term advances from customers — related
pariies
Vinaprint Corporation - 272.875.500
Branch of Phu Nhuan Trading Joint Stock Company
— Tri Ky Flower Garden Restaurant 87.962.499 -
Branch of Transimex Corporation in Da Nang City 54821100 -
Total 142.789.599 272.875.500

13. Taxes and other obligations to the State Budget
Amount Amount paid
Beginning payable during  during the
balance the year year Ending balance

VAT on local sales 175.428.500 731.173.934  (741.553.162) 165.049.272
Corporate income tax 41.901.012 610.349.088 (611.042.481) 41.207.619
Personal income tax 10.236.584 59.472.696 (39.477.676) 10.231.604
Land rental 184.027.375  1.226.034.972 (1.226.034.972) 184.027.375
Other taxes - 4.000.000 (4.000.000) -
Total 411.593.471 2.631.030.690 (2.642.108.291) 400.515.870

Value added tax (VAT)
The Company has to pay VAT in accordance with the deduction method at the rates of 5% or 10% as

specified for each type of goods and services.

Particularly, some goods and services are applied the tax rate of 8% according to the Government’s
Decree No. 94/2023/NB-CP dated 28 December 2023 for the period from 01 January 2024 to 30 June
2024 and the Government’s Decree No. 72/2024/ND-CP dated 30 June 2024 for the period from 01
July 2024 to 31 December 2024.

These Notes form an integral part of and shonld be read in conjunction with the Financial Starements 23



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

Corporate income tax

The Company has to pay corporate income tax on taxable income at the rate of 20%.

Estimated corporate income tax payable during the year is as follows:

Total accounting profit before tax
Increase/(decrease) of accounting profit to determine
profit subject to corporate income tax:

- Increases

- Decreases

Income subject to tax/Taxable income

Corporate income tax rate

Corporate income tax payable

Current year

Previous year

2.772.040.440

282.000.000

3.395.713.712

258.962.000

(2.295.000) (105.000.000)
3.051.745.440 3.549.675.712
20% 20%
610.349.088 709.935.142

Determination of corporate income tax liability of the Company is based on currently applicable
regulations on tax. Nonetheless, these tax regulations may change from time to time and tax
regulations applicable to variety of transactions can be interpreted differently. Hence, the tax amounts
presented in the Financial Statements can be changed upon the inspection of tax authorities.

Other taxes

The Company has declared and paid these taxes in line with the prevailing regulations.

14. Payables to employees

This item reflects the bonuses of 2024 to be paid to employees.

15. Short-term accrued expenses

Support for premises at No. 25 Ton That Thiep
Repair of premises at No. 25 Ton That Thiep
Other short-term accrued expenses

Total

16. Other payables
16a. Other short-term payables

Receipt of deposits for leasing premises from other
customers

Dividends payable

Other shott-term payables

Total

16b. Other long-term payables

Gems Fortuna Company Limited — receipt of deposit

Ending balance

Beginning balance

108.000.000 108.000.000
150.000.000 150.000.000

- 2.295.000
258.000.000 260.295.000

Ending balance

Beginning balance

752.000.000 752.000.000
34.663.467 34.663.467
12.424.511 8.716.253

799.087.978 795.379.720

Ending balance

Beginning balance

for leasing premises 400.000.000 400.000.000
BUSANKOREANFOOD business household 140.000.000 140.000.000
Receipt of deposits for leasing premises from other
customers 47.000.000 23.000.000
Total 587.000.000 563.000.000
16c. Overdue debts

The Company has no other overdue payables.
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District |, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

17.

18.

18a.

186.

18¢c

18d.

Bonus and welfare funds

Increase due to Disbursement
Beginning appropriation Other during the Ending
balance from profit increases year balance
Bonus fund 110.467.251 80.000.000 46.620.000  (83.700.000) 153.387.251
Welfare fund 14.080.501 213.000.000 - (135.118.597) 91.961.904
Total 124.547.752 293.000.000 46.620.000 (218.818.597) 245.349.155
Owner’s equity
Statement of changes in owner’s equity
Investment and
Owner’s development Retained
capital fund earnings Total
Beginning balance of the previous year 31.507.470.000 3.176.694.781 3.267.926.521 37.952.091.302
Profit in the previous year - - 2.665237.570 2.665.237.570
Appropriation for funds in the previous year - - (280.584.770) (280.584.770)

Dividend distribution in the previous year

- (1.575.373.500)

(1.575.373.500)

Ending balance of the previous year 31.507.470.000

3.176.694.781  4.077.205.821

38.761.370.602

Beginning balance of the current year
Profit in the current year -
Appropriation for funds in the current year -

Ending balance of the current year

31.507.470.000  3.176.694.781 4.077.205.82]1 38.761.370.602
- 2,161.232.352 2.161.232.352
- (293.000.000) (293.000.000)
31.507.470.000  3.176.694.781  5.945.438.173 40.629.602.954

Details of owner’s capital

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Benthanh Group
Thien Hai Investment and Trading Company Limited
Other shareholders

14.844.200.000
13.490.000.000
3.173.270.000

14.844.200.000
13.490.000.000
3.173.270.000

Total

31.507.470.000

31.507.470.000

Shares

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Number of shares registered to be issued
Number of shares issued

- Commown shares

- Preferred shares

Number of shares repurchased

- Common shares

- Preferred shares

Number of outstanding shares

- Common shares

- Preferred shares

Face value of outstanding shares: VND 10.000.

Profit distribution

3.150.747
3.150.747
3.150.747

3.150.747
3.150.747

3.150.747
3.150.747
3. 130.747

-

3.150.747
3.150.747

During the year, the Company appropriated the bonus and welfare funds for an amount of VND
293.000.000 according to the Resolution dated 22 March 2024 of 2024 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders.

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjuiction with the Financial Statements
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BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 3| December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

19.

VL

fat.

1b.

Off-balance sheet items

External leased assets

The total minimum lease payment in the future for irrevocable leasing contracts will be settled as
follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
1 year or less 1.069.062.400 1.069.062.400
More than | year to 5 years 4.276.249.600 4.276.249.600
More than 5 years 19.554.248.000 21.047.331.200
Total 24.899.560.000 26.392.643.200

The above operating lease payments are land rentals for long-term land lease contracts, which are
charged upon the leasing rate applicable for 2023 and can be changed or adjusted in the future
according to Government’s policy. Currently, the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City is leasing
three locations to the Company with long-term lease contracts including: No. 50 Calmette Streel.
Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District | and No. 75-77 Calmette Street, Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District
1 with the lease term until 01 January 2046 and at the respective leasing rates of VND
3.560.480/m?*/year and VND 3.236.800/m*/year; No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh
Ward, District 1 with the lease term until 27 June 2058 and at the leasing rate of VND
3.203.200/m*/year. For other locations, the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City is offering short-
term leases and annual payments.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue [tui sales ol guuds and provisivus ul set vices
Grrosy revernue

Current year Previous year
Revenue from sales of merchandise 1.409.059.000 -
Revenue from service provisions 2.013.675.300 433.832.810
Revenue from assct lcase 1.727.825.093 127580, 141
Total 11.150.559.393 7.706.413.542

Revenue from sales of goods and provisions of services to related parties

Apart from premises lease to joint ventures and associate as presented in Note No. V.2b, the Company
also provided services and leased assets to related parties which are not joint ventures and assoctates
as follows:

Current year Previous year
Transimex Hi Tech Park Logistics Co., Ltd. 198.746.000 238.000.810
Transimex Property Company Limited 148.390.000 27.488.000
Transimex Port Corporation 714.771.750 85.954.000
Phu Nhuan Trading Joint Stock Company 290.634.150 82.390.000
Vinaprint Corporation 1.062.223.400 -
Long An Investment Single-Member Limited
Liability Company 949.773.000 -
Costs of sales

Current year Previous year
Costs of merchandise sold 1.224.706.905 -
Costs of services provided 1.774.508.723 346.404.149
Costs of leased assets 2.187.024.719 1.856.988.907
Total 5.186.240.347 2.203.393.056

These Notes form an integral part of and should be read i conpunciion with the Financial Siarements 26



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal yvear ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

3. Financial income

Current year

Previous vear

Bank deposit interest
Revenue from business cooperation

Total

1.151.664.815 1.956.701.315
923.999.986 860.980.066
2.075.664.801 2.817.681.381

4.  Financial expenses

Current year

Previous year

Provisions for financial investments
Liquidation of investments
Business cooperation costs

1.370.000.000

382.227.885

920.000.000
(25.000.000)
299.673.703

Total

1.752.227.885

1.194.673.705

5.  General and administration expenses

Current year

Previous vear

Expenses for employees

Office supplies

Office stationery

Taxes, fees and legal fees

Reversal of allowances for doubtful debts
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

2.282.684.722
11.229.056
9.154.682
34.716.331
274.727.051
903.203.680

2.294.342.146
16.523.500
26.880.730
38.605.419
(3.000.000)
454.611.657
902.350.998

Total

3.515.715.522

3.730.314.450

6.  Earnings per share
6a. Basic/diluted earnings per share

Current year

Previous year

Accounting profit after corporate income tax
Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds !

Profit used to calculate basic/diluted earnings per
share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year

Basic/diluted earnings per share

2.161.232.352 2.665.237.570
(2559.000.000) (293.000.000)
1.902.232.352 2372237570
3.150.747 3.150.747
604 753

(i The bonus and welfare funds in the current year are temporarily calculated on the basis of the expected

profit distribution of 12% of after-tax profit.

6b.  Other information

There is no transaction over the common share or potential common share from the balance sheet date

until the date of these Financial Statements.

7.  Operating costs by factors

Current year

Previous year

Materials and supplies

Labor costs

Depreciation/(amortization) of fixed assets
Expenses for external services

Other expenses

11.229.056
2.770.700.132
101.703.768
4.871.248.220
947.074.693

16.523.500
2.735.168.331
101.703.768
2.115.474.740
964.837.147

Total

8.701.955.869

5.933.707.506

These Noies form an integral part of and showld be read in confunction with the Financial Staientents



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

VII. OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. Operating leased assets
As at the balance sheet date, the total minimum rental to be collected in the future from irrevocable
operating leases is as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
1 year or less 2.640.000.000 2.400.000.000
More than | year to 5 years 5.676.000.000 §8.184,000.000
Total 8.316.000.000 10.584.000.000

The above future operating lease payments include the amounts earned from the Company’s lease for
offices at No. 75-77 Calmette Street, Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District I, Ho Chi Minh City. The
leasing rates (exclusive of VAT) are VND 210.000.000/month (applicable from 01 January 2024 to 3|
December 2024), VND 220,000 000/month (applicable from 01 January 2025 to 31 December 2025),
VND 231.000.000/month (applicable from 01 January 2026 to 31 December 2026) and VND
242.000.000/month (applicable from 01 January 2027 to 31 December 2027).

2. Transactions and balances with related parties

The Company’s related parties include the key managers, their related individuals and other related
parties,

2a.  Transactions and balances with the key managers and their related individuals

The Company’s key managers include the Board of Management and the Executive Board (the Board
of Directors and the Chief Accountant). The key managers’ related individuals are their close family
members.

Transactions with the key managers and their related individuals

The Company has no service provisions and no other transactions with the key managers and their
related individuals.

Receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals

CA
The Company has no receivables from and payables to the key managers and their related individuals. E’u
*
Remuneration of the key managers and the Supervisory Board s}r
Salary, -
Position Compensation bonus Total
Current year
Mr. Le Van Hung Chairman 84.000.000 - 84.000.000
Mr. Nguyen Le Dung Board Member cum General
Director 60.000.000 407.714.114 467.714.114
Ms. Le Thi Tuong Vy Board Member — appointed on
22 April 2022 60.000.000 - 60.000.000
Ms. Truong Thi Thanh Luan Board Member — appointed on
22 April 2022 60.000.000 - 60.000.000
Ms. Nguyen Kim Hau Board Member — appointed on
: 21 April 2023 60.000.000 - 60.000.000

These Notes form an integral part of and should bé read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 28
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Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 3| December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

Salary,

Position Compensation bonus Total
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Phung Deputy General Director —

appointed on 01 September

2023 - 254.562.645 254.562.645
Mr. Le Ngoc Nguyen Hoang  Head of Supervisory Board —

resigned on 01 July 2022 30.000.000 - 30.000.000
Ms. Dang Kim Dung Head of Supervisory Board —

appointed on 20 August 2024 21.935.000 - 21.935.000
Mr. Tu Vi Tri Supervisory Board Member 36.000,000 - 36.000.000
Mr. Huynh Van Toan Supervisory Board Member -

appointed on 08 September

2023 36.000.000 - 36.000.000
Ms, Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi Secretary to the Board of

Management - appointed on 04

September 2023 36.000.000 - 36.000.000
Total 483.935.000 662.276.739 1.146.211.739
Previous year
Mr. Le Van Hung Chairman 84.000.000 - 84.000.000
Mr. Nguyen Le Dung Board Member cum General

Director 60.000.000  430.422.884
Ms. Le Thi Tuong Vy Board Member — appointed on

22 April 2022 60.000.000 -
Ms. Truong Thi Thanh Luan Board Member — appointed on

22 April 2022 60.000.000 -
Ms. Nguyen Kim Hau Board Member — appointed on

21 April 2023 41.667.000 .
Mr. Truong Quang Thong Deputy General Director —

retired on 01 June 2023 - 134.707.538 134.707.538
M. Nguyen Ngoc Phung Deputy General Director —

appointed on 01 September

2023 - 44.666.667 44.666.66
Mr Lo Mgoe Mguyen [Toang Tead of Supervisory Board -

appointed on 22 April 2022 60.000.000 - 60.000.00
Mr. Tu Vi Tri Supervisory Board Member 36.000.000 2 36.000.000
Mr. Tu Quang Nhat Supervisory Board Member -

resigned on 08 September

2023 24.700,000 - 24.700.000
Mr. Huynh Van Toan Supervisory Board Member -

appointed on 08 September

2023 11.300.000 - 11.300.000
Ms. Nguyen Ngoc Lien Khuong Secretary to the Board of

Management - resigned on 04

September 2023 24.000.000 - 24.000.000
Ms. Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi Secretary to the Board of

Management - appointed on 04

September 2023 12.000.000 - 12.000.000
Total 473.667.000  609.797.089 1.083.464.089

These Notes form an imegral part of and should be read in conjunction vith the Financial Statements



BEN THANH SERVICES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 390 Nguyen Cong Tru Street, Cau Ong Lanh Ward, District |, Ho Chi Minh City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

2b.

Ja.

Transactions and balances with other related parties
Other related parties of the Company include:
Other related parties Relationship

Benthanh Group Shareholder holding 47,1 1% of charter capital
Thien Hai Investment and Trading Company Limited  Shareholder holding 42,82% of charter capital
Vinh Loc — Ben Thanh Services Joint Stock Company ~ Associate

MeruFa Joint Stock Company Company having the same key managers
Special Aquatic Products Joint Stock Company Company having the same key managers
Vinaprint Corporation Company having the same key managers
Transimex Corporation Company having the same key managers
Phu Nhuan Trading Joint Stock Company Company having the same key managers
Transimex Port Corporation Company having the same key managers
Transimex Hi Tech Park Logistics Co., Ltd. Company having the same key managers

Long An Investment Single-Member Limited Liability Company having the same key managers
Company

Transactions with other related parties
Apart from transactions with the associate as presented in Note No. V.2b, the service provisions to
other related parties which are not associates are presented in Note No. VI.1b

The prices of services supplied to other related parties are the mutually agreed prices.

Receivables from and payables to other related parties T“\?‘
The receivables from and payables to other related parties are presented in Notes No. V.3, V.5. V.12 — g
and V.]6a, ONG TY |
YHIEM HUU
The receivables from other related parties are unsecured and will be paid in cash. JAN VA TU
&G
Segment information —
The primary segment information is the business segment based on the internal organizational and _éﬂ___,/?‘;
management structure as well as the system of internal financial reporting of the Company.
Information on business segment
The Company operates in the following business fields: 12400 54
* Providing maintenance services for solar energy systems and air conditioners. ING TY
» Leasing assets, 5 PHAN
ICH VY °
The information on financial performance according to business segments of the Company is as TH:@N
follows: oL
Sale of Service 7 ¢
merchandise provision Asset lease Total ?'"P.HQJS;
Current year '
Net revenue 1.409.059.000 2.013.675.300 7.727.825.093 11.150.559.393
Segment financial performance 184.352.095  239.166.577  5.540.800.374 5.964.319.046
Expenses not attributable to segments (3.515.715.522
Operating profit 2.448.603.524
Financial income 2.075.664.801
Financial expenses (1.752.227.885)
Other income -
Other expenses =
Current income tax (610.349.088)
Deferred income tax (459.000)
Profit after tax 2.161.232.352

These Notes form an'integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements 30
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)

Sale of Service
merchandise provision Asset lease Tatal

Previous year

Net revenue 433.832.810 7.272.580.732 7.706.413.542
Segment financial performance 87.428.661 5.415.591.825 5.503.020.486
Expenses not attributable to segments (3.730.314.430)
Operating profit 1.772.706.036
Financial income 2.817.681.38]
Financial expenses (1.194.673.705)
Other income -
Other expenses s
Current income tax (709.935.142)
Deferred income tax (20.541.000)
Profit after tax 2.663.237.570

3b.  Information on geographical segment
All activities of the Company take place only in Ho Chi Minh City.

4,  Subsequent events
There is no material subsequent event which is required adjustments or disclosures in the Financial

Statements.

Ho Chi Minh City. |8 February 2025

o ﬁé{

ErET s
Nguyen Thi Kim Nga Hoang Thi Quynh Nhi "w Le Dung
Preparer Chief Accountant Geéneral Director

These Notes form an integral part of emel should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statemenis 31
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